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Annual Report of the Members of the Corporation

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting their Annuzl Report including the Financial Statements of the
Corporation for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Activities

During the year the Group continued to provide services to the Cook Islands community on behalf of the
Government, including the operations of the ports and airports on the islands of Aitutaki and Rarotonga, the
electricity supply 1o Aitutaki and Rarctonga, and the operations of the Bank of Coock Islands.

The Corporation managed all Government land and buildings threughout the Cook islands including commaercial
properties, residential properties, Government Ministries, Government Funded Agencies, public schools and
public hospitals.

Objectives

The Corpaoration was established by an Act of Parliament, the Ceok islands Investment Corporation Act (1998).
The Act providas for the control and management of Government Assets and undertakings. Spscific ohjectives
of the Corpcration are outlined in the Act, and include:

Efficiant Management of Assets
This involvas the management of Government lands and buildings, and the statutory management of subsidiaries
and state owned enterprises.

Privatisation

The Act ensures that the Cerporation does not compete in trading activities where the private sector is willing
and able to carry out those activities, unless in the opinion of the Board it is in the public interest that the
Corporation becomes involved to ensure that a particular trading activity is provided on a reliabls, sustainable and.
equitable basis.

To be socially Responsibls
This objective of the Corporation provides a balance hetween the maximisation of profits, and the recognition of .
the Govarnmant’s social responsibility in the performance of the Corperation’s functions.

Results
Group Parent
3*Q‘J:|.t'ner 30.June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars i) o 2022 2021
Surplus/(Deficit) after tax S 7904y 383
Total assets 428315 419657 8,032
Owners' squity ' 58832 261,152 1,980

STATUTORY CORPORATIONS

Airport Authority

The Airport Authority Is governed under the Airports and Airport Authorities Act {1968-1989). The Authority is
responsible for the management of the international airport on Rarctonga and the domestic airport on Aitutaki,

The Authority has total assets of $74,041,000 and equity of $73,703,000 at 30 June 2022, it made a tax paid loss
of $1,688,000 this yaar.




Cock Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation

The Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation was established in November 2003, under tha Bank of the
Coock Islands Act 2003, following the committee review under the Minister of Bank of the Cock Islands to ensure
the agencies charter remainad in line with the Government's commitment to financial reform.

The Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation has total assets of $138,922,000 and equity of $17,711,000
at 30 June 2022. It made a loss aftar tax of $190,000 this year.

Cook Islands Government Property Corporation

The Corporation was established by the Cook Islands Government Property Corporation Act {1969) to manage
Government assets with its governing body being the Ministers of the Government. The major assets ownead by
Cook lslands Government Property Corporation are Government land and buildings, and equity investments.

The Corporation generated rental revenues on its buildings portfolic. These revenuss are transferred to Cook
Islands Investment Corporation in accordance with Section 31 {2) of the Cook Islands Investment Corporation Act
(1998). All administration and management expenses relating to assets owned by the Corporation are incurred by
Cook Islands Investment Corporation.

The Corporation has total assets of $71,710,000 and equity of $70,805,000 at 30 June 2022. It made & loss of
$2,386,000 this year. The Corporation is tax exempt.

Ports Authority

The management of the commarcial ports at Avatiu, Rarctonga and Arutanga, Aitutaki rests with the Poris
Authority, under the Ports Autherity Act (1994-1995).

The Authority has total assets of $34,698,000 and equity of $14,723,000 at 30 June 2022. It made a loss of
$188,795 for this year.

Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation

The Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation is governed by the Broadcasting Corporation Act {1989). With the
functions of providing radio and television sarvice privatised, Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation is currently
dormant.

Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation has nil total assets and nil equity at 30 June 2022. It did not trade during
the year.

Te Aponga Uira O Tumu-te-Varovaro

Te Aponga Uira generates and distributes elactricity to Rarotonga in accordance with its mandate under the Te
Aponga Uira O tumu-te-Varovaro Act {1991).

Te Aponga has total assets of $62,247,000 and equity of $58,341,000 at 30 June 2022. It mads an after tax loss
of $1,172,000 this year.

To Tatou Vai Authority

To Tatou Vai Authority (TTV) is an Authority under the To Tatou Vai Act 2021.

The principal activity of the Authority is to ensura the availability of an adequate supply of drinkable water and to
astablish and manage the treatment, collection and disposal of sewage on the Island of Rarotonga

The Authority has total assets of $2,512,000 and equity of $2,034,000 at 30 June 2022. It made a tax paid
surplus of $84,000 for this year.

COMPANIES

Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited

Cook Islands Property Carporation (NZ) Limited is incorporated under the New Zealand Companies Act {1993).
The Company owns the Consulate premises in Wellington.

Caok Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited has total assets of $729,000 and equity of {$201,000) at 30 June
2022. It made & loss after tax of $153,000 this year.
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Suwarrow Development Corporation Limited
Suwarrow Development Corporation Limited was set up to act as a manager / licansor for industry in Suwarrow.
The Company is dormant.

Cook Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited

Cock Islands Government Property Corporation is the owner of all shares in Cook Islands Telecommunication
Holdings Limited. That entity is a holding company for Government's 40% interest in Telecom Cook Islands
Limited (tracling as Vodafone Cook Islands). Control of Cook Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited rests
with the governing body of Cook Islands Government Properiy Corporation,

Cook Islands Telecornmunication Holdings Limited has total assets of $12,516,000 and equity of $12,487,000 at
30 June 2022. It made 2 tex paid deficit of $371,000 this year.

Banana Court Company Limited

The Company manages the Banana Court commercial retail complex in Avarua.

The Banana Court Company Limited has total assets of $222,000 and equity of $177,000 at 30 June 2022. It
made a tax paid deficit $27,000 for this year.

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited

The Company generates and distributes electricity on the outer island of Aitutaki.

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited has total assets of $6,416,000 and equity of $5,995,000 at 30 June 2022. |t made
a tax paid loss of $814,000 for this year.

Avaroa Cables Limited
The principal activity of Avaroa Cables Limited is management of telecommunication networks and sarvices.

Avaroa Cables Limited has total assets of $33,027,000 and equity of $1,346,000 at 30 June 2022. It made a tax
paid deficit of $2,111,000 for this year.

Accounting Policies
Accounting pelicies are applied according to generally accepted accounting practice as applied in International
Public Sector Accounting Standards {IPSAS).

Remuneration of CIIC Directors

Mr Michael Henry received fees of $29,000 as Chairman of the Board and $25,000 as a member of the
Infrastructurs Committee during the year. Mr Malcolm Sword recaived $19,000 as a Director and $15,000 as a
member of the Infrastructure Committee. Ms Caren Rangi receivad $39,000 for her role as a Dirsctor of the
Cook Islands Investment Corporation. Mr Fitecher Melvin and Ms Eleanor Roi received $17,499 respectively for
their roles as Directors of the Cook Islands Investment Corporation.

Appointment of Auditors

In compliance with Section 17 of the Cook Islands Investment Corporation Act 1898, KPMG wers reappointed as
guditor for the 2022 financial year.

For and on behalf of the Mlembers of the Corporation

W/Z_/- y

rector Director
g b Xul% Lrod S, 2S Wly 2917
Date Date M




Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of Cook Islands Investment Corporation

Report on the audit of the Corporation and Group financial statements

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Cook We have audited the accompanying Corporation
Islands Investment Corporation (the 'Corporation’) and Group financial statements which comprise:
and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) on pages 13 to 74

SR x ) — the statement of financial position as at 30 June
present fairly, in all material respects:

2022;
- the Corporation and Group's financial position as
30 June 2022 and its financial performance and

cash flows for the year ended on that date;

— the Corporation and Group statements of
comprehensive revenue and expenses,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year

in accordance with International Public Sector then ended; and

Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

notes, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

<= Basis for qualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) ('ISAs (NZ)'). We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

Ownership, completeness and valuation of property, plant and equipment

The Corporation and Group's property, plant and equipment is carried at $0.125m and $214m respectively on the
Corporation and Group statements of financial position as at 30 June 2022. We were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence about the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2021
due to a loss of historical accounting records. Our audit opinion on the Corporation and Group financial
statements for year ended 30 June 2021 was modified in respect of this matter. Refer to note 14 for further
details. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to the amounts shown for
property, plant and equipment in the Corporation and Group’s statements of financial position as at 30 June
2022, or related amounts included in the Corporation and Group’s statements of comprehensive revenue and
expenses for the year then ended, were necessary.

We are independent of the Corporation and Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1
International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (Including International Independence Standards) (New
Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Infernational Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) ('IESBA Code'), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (NZ) are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

© 2023 kPG G
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Our firm has also provided other services to the Corporation and Group in relation to taxation. Subject to certain
restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the Corporation and Group on normal terms
within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the Corporation and Group. These matters have
not impaired our independence as auditor of the Corporation and Group. The firm has no other relationship with,
or interest in, the Corporation and Group.

-E5- Emphasis of matter - Estimation uncertainty in the
preparation of the Corporation and Group financial statements

We draw attention to Note 3 on critical estimates and judgements used in applying accounting policies, credit
provisioning in the financial statements, which describes increased estimation uncertainty in the preparation of
the Corporation and Group financial statements, specifically as it relates to:

— the extent and duration of the residual economic pandemic (including forecasts for key economic factors
including GDP and CPI);

— the impact of the progressive removal of bank relief and government support initiatives that were put in place
to support businesses and consumers through the pandemic; and

— the timeframe for and extent of financial recovery for individual borrowers impacted by the pandemic.

The economic uncertainity resulting from the Covid-19 impacts and data input adjustments has resulted in a 58%

increase in the ECL reported in the financial statements compared with pre-Covid times.

In our view, this issue is fundamental to the user's understanding of the financial statements and the financial
poisiton and performance of the Bank. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

1 = Otherinformation

The Members, on behalf of the Corporation and Group, are responsible for the other information included in the
financial statements. Other information includes the Annual Report of the Members of the Corporation. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Corporation and Group financial statements our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Corporation and Group financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

i+ Useof thisindependent auditor’s report

This independent auditor's report is made solely to the shareholders as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in the
independent auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the shareholders as a body for our audit work, this independent
auditor's report, or any of the opinions we have formed.
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% Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation and
Group for the financial statements

The Members of the Corporation, on behalf of the Corporation and Group, are responsible for:

— the preparation and fair presentation of the Corporation and Group financial statements in accordance with
IPSAS;

— implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a set of Corporation and Group financial
statements that is fairly presented and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

— assessing the ability to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

£~ Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Gorporation
and Group financial statements

Our objective is:

— to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

— to issue an independent auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs NZ will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate ,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ), the auditor exercises professional judgement and maintains
professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor also:

— Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtains audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the auditor's opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

— Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

— Concludes on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by those charged with
governance and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
the auditor concludes that a material uncertainty exists, the auditor is required to draw attention in the
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. The auditor’s conclusions are based on the audit evidence
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obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The auditor is
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. The auditor remains solely
responsible for the audit opinion.

The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that the auditor identifies during the audit.

The auditor also provides those charged with governance with a statement that the auditor has complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on the auditor’s independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, the auditor determines those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. The auditor describes these matters in the auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, the auditor
determines that a matter should not be communicated in the auditor's report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication. This description forms part of our independent auditor's report.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is David Gates.

For and on behalf of

KMo,

Rarotonga

25" July 2023
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Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses
For the year ended 30 June 2022

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Note 2021
Revenue from exchange transactions

Airport landing fees -
Electricity services -
Fees on banking portfolic assets © 3l -
Interest on banking portfolio assets 3lc) -
Port servicas -
Rental income 3lc) 537
Interest income 3ic) 35
Total revenue from exchange transactions 632
Other revenue

Aid funding 3le) 48
Crown appropriation 3c) 8,194
Dividends received 30 819
POBOC revenue 503
Sundry income 5 135
Total other revenue 9,699
Total Revenue 10,331

The notes on pages 21 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses

For the year ended 30 June 2022

~Group
In thousands of New Zealand Doliars Note 2021 2021
Expenditure &
Personnel costs 14,139 1,628
Depreciation and amortisation 14,15,16 11,806 53
Directors fees and expenses 843 178
Increase / (decrease} in provision for doubtful debts 2,477 17
Finance costs 1,931 -
Legal and professional fees 1,416 -
Rental and operating lease costs 1,138 362
Office communication 6174 15
Repairs and maintenance 100174 6,489
Insurance 1,853 203
Fuel 5974% -
Covid-19 discounts 6,948 -
Other expenses 6 6,621 907
Total expenditure 65,781 9,852
Other gains/{losses)
Gain / (loss) on disposal of assets -
Unrealised foreign exchange gain / lloss) 1,694 -
Realised foreign exchange gain / loss} 145 -
Share of profit/ {loss) of equity accounted investees 20(a) b2 -
Impairment l0ss -
Total other gains/(losses) 2,263 -
Surplus / (deficit} before income tax (7,035 479
Income tax expense 18 824 (96)
Surplus / (deficit} for the year 8,211 383
Other comprehensive revenue and expenses for -
Total comprehensive revenue and expenses for the year 6,211):: 383

Identification
Purpose

*

The niotes on pages 21 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements
14
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2022

N _Group
In thousands of New Zealand Dolfars Noie 022 2021 2021
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 27,992 1,234
Term deposits 9 37,185 768
Trade receivables 10 1,623 109
Dividends receivable 11 - -
Inventories 13 6,998 1
Work in progress recaivable Ti{g) 3,418 3,418
Prepayments 1,677 20
Sundry and other receivables 2,991 633
Related party receivables 11 2,590 506
Banking pertfolio investments 12 5,613 -
Future Income Tax Benefit 18 574 -
Taxation receivable . 18 1,092 672
Total current assets 94,753 7,361
Non current assets
Preperty, plant and equipment 14 216,802 136
Investrment properties 16 h,824 -
Banking portfolic investments 12 76,821 -
Deferred tax assets 18 2,008 9
Intangible assets 15 1,960 -
Investment in associate 20(a) 12,332 -
Investment in subsidiaries 20(b} - 527
Investment in shares 19 128 -
Related party receivables 11 546 -
Term deposits 9 8,483 -
Total non-current assets 324,904 671
Total assets 419,657 8,032

The notes on pages 21 1o 74 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2022

~ Group :
0 2021

Note 2021
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Equity
Capital contribution and retained earnings : :

L 261,152: 1,980

Total Equity 261,152 1,980}
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 6,613 ; 617
Banking custcmer deposits 21 102,815 -
Customer bonds 1,116 46
Borrowings 22 18,063 -
Deferred revenue liability 5 -
Employse entitlements 7 864 137
Income in advance 717 -
Related party payables 11 752 1,615
Capital project liahility 111g) = 4,143 3,698
Income tax payable 18 517 -
Total current liabilities 135,605 6,014
Non current liabilities
Banking custormer deposits 21 3,900 -
Deferred taxation liability 18 341 38
Deferred revenue liability T -
Borrowings 22 18,659 -
Total non current liabilities 22,300 38
Total liabilities 158,505 6,052
Total equity and liabilities 419,657 8,032

The notes on pages 21 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Group

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year endad 30 June 2022

Capital Total equity
contributions &
retained earnings

Balance at 1 July 2020 259,474 259,474
Changes in net asssts/equity for 2021
Tax benefit on dividends paid 18 164 164
Surplusf{Deficit) for the year (6,211) {6,211)
Total recognised revenue and expenses for the year

g P Y (6,047) (6,047)
Transactions with owners of the Pareni:
Equity injection by owners 111) 7,725 7,725
Dividends -
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of
the Parent 7,725 7,725
Balance at 30 June 2021 261,162 261,152

. for
idsntification
Purpose

*

The notes on pages 21 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements |
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Parent
Capital Total equity
contributions &
retained earnings
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Balance at 1 July 2020 1,597 1,597

Changes in net assets/equity for 2021

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 383 383
Total recognised revenue and expenses for the year 383 383

Transactions with owners of the Parent:

Equity injection by owners - -
Dividends -
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of

the Parent - -
Balance at 30 June 2021 1,980 1,980

The notes on pages 21 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Cashflows
For the year ended 30 June 2022

in thousands of New Zealand Dollars o Parent

Note 202 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts frorn customers 21,28 774
Crown appropriation 15,85 8,453
POBOC 1,02 566
Dividends received 819
Interast received 9,409; 35
Aid funding 2,633 48
MNet increasef{decrease) in client deposits 8,61 -
Net investment in banking gortfolio {1,021 -
Cash paid 1o suppliers and empioyees (40,941 (9,630)
Interest paid {1,931 -
Ingome tax paid 18 {42
Net cash from operating activities 13,08 1,013
Cash flows from investing activities
Net acquisition/disposal of property, plant and equipment (12,707 (53)
Net acquisitionfsele of intangibles {235 -
Proceeds from / {acquistion of} term deposits 1,43 (27
Proceaeds from Investees {425)
Loans 1o related parties (193}
Net cash from investing activities 698}
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings -
Proceeds from related parties -
Equity introduced -
Dividends paid -
Net cash from financing activities 6,320 -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,37 315
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 23,204 919
Expected cradit loss on bank balanaces (683): -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 27,992 1,234
Made up of:
Total bank balances and on-call deposits 28,17 1,251
Less {increasel/decrease in allowance for doubtful debts (17)
Total cash and cash equivalents 8 27,99 1,234

The notes on pages 21 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Cashfiows
For the year ended 30 June 2022

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Group

2021
Surplus for the year after tax 383
Depreciation & amortisation 53
Doubtful debts 1
{Gains)/losses on asset disposal -
Foreign exchange losses/{gains) -
Plant and Equipment acquired in non-exchange -
Impairment cn plant property and equipment -
Share of loss from equity accounted investment -
Tax Impact on Dividends
Working capital adjustments
{Increase) / decrease in receivables & prepayments 49
Increase / {decrease) in payables & other accruals 232
(Increase) / decrease in work in prograss 5268
(Increase) / decrease in bank loan portfolios -
(Increase) / decrease in inventories -
Increase / {decrease) in project liabilities (228)
Increase / (decrease} in deferred income liability 41)
Increase / (decrease} in income in advance -
Ingrease / (dscrease} in net tax pavable 20
Increase / ({decreass) in future income tax benefit -
{Increase) f decrease in deferred tax asset (4)
Incraase / (decrease) in deferred tax liability 38
Increase / (decrease) in customer deposits -
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,013
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The notes on pages 27 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements
20




Cook Isiands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements

1 Reporting entity
2 Basis of preparation

3 Significant accounting policies

New standards and
interpretations not yet adopted

5 Sundry income

6 Other expenses

7 Employee entitlements

8 Cash and cash equivalents
9 Term Deposits

10 Receivables from exchange
transactions

11 Related parties

12 Banking portfolio investments
13 Inventoriss

14 Property, plant and equipment
15 Intangible asseats

186 Invastment property

17 Trade and cther payables

18 Taxes

19 Investment in shares

20 lhvestment in Asscciates and
Subsidiaries

21 Banking customer deposits

Page

22
22-24

24-41

M1
42
42

42

43

43
44 - 47
47-48
48
49 - 52
53
53
54
55 -56
57

57 -58

58

22 Borrowings
23 Financial instruments

24 Commitments and contingencies

25 Segmental reporting
26 Going concern

27 Subsequant events

Page

59 - 60
61-70

M-72

73
73

74

idsntification
Pumeass

*

21




Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements

Note 1 Reporting entity
Cook Islands Investment Corporation is domiciled in the Cook Islands and incorporated under the Cook Islands .
Investment Act 1998. Its financial statements comply with the Act.
Financial staterments for Cook Islands Investment Corporation (the "Corparation'} and consolidated financial
statemenis are presented. The consolidated financial statements comprise the Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
“Group") and the Group's interests in associates. The Corporation is an in-substance subsidiary of the Cook Islands
Government.
The Corporation’s principal activities are property investment and management. The Group also owns entities that
operate in the banking, communication, power supply, airport, and port sectors. The Corporation’s registered office is
located in Rarctonga, Cook Islands. o

Throughout these financial statements, unless stated otherwise, references to the 'Corporation’ or 'Parent’ refer to
Cook Islands Investment Corporation.

Note 2 Basis of preparaﬁon
a)  Statement of compliance
The consalidated financial statemeants of the Group have been prepared in accordance with and comply with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). Sorme entities within the group apply IFRS, NZIFRS and
PBE standards in thair individuzl financial statements. The policies adopted by these entities are in line with IPSAS or
whera IPSAS does not have a relevant standard, other authoritative support has been used such as IFRS. The policies
adopted by the Group are inline with IPSAS.
The accounting policies have bheen consistently applied to all the years presented.

b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis medified for the revaluation of certain
asseis.

The statemant of cash flows is preparad using the direct method.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis.

COVID-19 Pandemic

Going concern without material uncertainties

The COVID-19 pandemic continuas to have some impacis on the Group during 2022, Within the group, the results of
Bank of the Cook Islands Limited, Airport Authority, Te Aponga Uira and Te Mana Uira o Araura have experienced the
most Impact. .

The key impacts of COVID-19 on these entities is described below:

Bank of the Cook Islands Limited:

The Group has considered the ongoing impacts of COVID-18 cn Bank of the Cook Islands Limited in 2020 and
continued througout 2021 and into the current financial year. The pandemic impacted the Group in the following
areas:

For the vear ended June 2022
- Credit risk: The economic impact of the pandernic was significant and impacted the ability of a number of

borrowers to maintain loan repayments. A number of initiatives were put in place to support borrowers during
the period of 1 March 2020 to 31 March 2022 including deferred payments and interest only terms.

At reporting date the economic environment is supported by the re-opening of borders and the reduction of
COVID-18 related restrictions both locally and internaticnally. This has resulted in increased levels of tourism
that are supporting economic recovery. However, there remains a level of economic uncertainty that is
reflected in the Groups approach to its estimaticn of expected cradit losses on loan receivables.

- Liquidity risk: The pandernic increased the inherent level of liguidity risk of the Group however liguidity lovels
have been maintained during the reporting period. '

- Operations: The Group's operations have been impacted by COVID-19. The implernentztion of the Groups
Pandemic Response Plan allowed the Group fo maintain operations supperted by remote waorking,
implementation of staff bubbles, and increased hygiens measures. The Group was able to maintain operations
throughout the reporting pericd.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 2 Basis of preparation (continued)
b) Basis of measurement (continued)

Bank of the Cook Islands Limited {continued}:
The resulting impact of the virus on the operations and measures taken by various governments to contain the virus
have affected the Group's results in the current and comparative reporting period.

Management has determined that the actions that it has taken and will continue to take are sufficient to mitigate
uncertainty and has therefare prepared the financial reporting on a going concern basis.

Airport Authority

COVID-18 residual impacts continued to cause economic uncertainties. However, as the situation around COViD-19
evolved and the efficacy of the counter measures undertaken by counterpart countrias wera

successful, the Cook lslands Government were able 1o lift the border restrictions. The opening of the borders resulted
in a significant increass in Intarnational Flights from January 2022, and subsequently resulted in a

significant increass in the Authority's revenues. We note the reopening of the barders from 13 January 2022 saw
flights increase to an average of 1 flight per day with both Air New Zealand and Jetstar operating by the end of the
financial year.

Subsequent to year-end, Air Tahiti has provided weekly international flights to French Polynesia since October

2022. In addition, the Authority anticipatas flights cperated by Hawaiian airlines from May 2023 and a flight

route to Sydney frem June 2023. The Authority has forecasted an increase in flights 10 an average of 2- 3

flights per day for the year ending 30 June 2023. These forecasts ars based on the information avaliable to the
Authority gt the tima of preparing these financial staterments and are based on reference to various data sources
including airlines, and travel and tourism bedies. With regards to these financial statements, the Authority has
considered the likely impact of COVID-19 In areas such as provisioning for doubtful debts, considering any impairment
triggers ralevant to PP&E and intangible assets and going concern. To date the impact on these areas has been
limited.

Te Aponga Uira

During the financial year, Te Apenga Uira provided the following COVID-19 discounts:

For the 2 months, December 2021 and January 2022, to customers who declared financial harship - Domestic
customers received a $50 discount and Commercial and Demand customers received 50%.
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Notes to thé financial statements {(continued)

Note

Note

2 Basis of preparation

b) Basis of measurement {continued)

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited

The Company previded community relief in the form of @ 100% discount to all customer types for the April 2020 to
the June 2020 billing cycle in relation to the 30 June 2020 financial year. The company continusd to provide
discounting during the 30 June 2021 financial year on a diminishing basis through the 30 June 2021 financial year, and
this ceased in the July 2021 billing cycle.

Group

The Group's forecasts show that the actions that it has taken are sufficient to mitigate the uncertainty presenied by
COVID-19, therefore, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Central to this assassment is the continued government support the Group receives with the combined nature of the
operations being assential services and essential asset management & cwning eniities.

c) Functional and presentation currency
The consclidated financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the functional and reporting
currency of the Group and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ($000) except where indicated otherwise.

3 Significant accounting policies

The accounting pclicies set out belaw have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statemnents, and have been appliad consistently by Group entities.

a) Consolidation

Controlled entities

The canirolled entities are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the controlling entity has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies. Controlled entities are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the controliing entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. Inter-
group transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between members of the group are
eliminated in full. The accounting policies of the controlled entities are consistent with the policies adopted by the
controlling entity.

& ) RARO;-%Q'
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Significant influsnce is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting power of another entity.

Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method and are
recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the surplus or deficit, afier adjustrents to align
the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence or joint coniral commences
uniil the date that significant influence or joint control ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its infarest in an equity accounted investes, the carrying amount of the
investment, including any long-term investments that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the recegnition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an cbligation or has made payments on behaif
of ithe Investee.

¢}  Revenue recognition

Goods and services

Revenue comprises the amounts received and receivable for goods and services supplied to customers in the
ordinary course of business. Revenue is stated exclusive of Value Added Tax. Revenue from the sale of goods in the
course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recsivable, net of returns,
trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when persuasive avidence exists that the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, and the
revenue and associated costs can be estimated and measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted
and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are
recognisad.

Interest income

Interest incorne is accrued using the effactive interest rate method. The effective interest rate discounts estimated
future cash recsipts through the expacted life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. The method
applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest incorme each period.

Fee and commission

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate of a financial asset or
financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest. For example, loan esteblishment fees,
together with related direct costs, are deferred and recognised as an adjusiment 1o the effective interest rate on a
loan once drawn.

Fees and commissions that relate to the axecution of a significant act are recognised whan the significant act has
been completed.

Fess charged for providing ongoing services (for example, maintaining and administering existing facilities) are
recognised as income over the period the service is provided.

Dormant account fees are charged on accounts which have baen dormant greater than two years at a rate of fifteen
dollars per quarter.

Rental income
Rental incoms from investment property is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses
on & straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

c) Revenue recognition {continued)

Government grants - Interest Refief Program

During the previous financial year, under Phase 1 of the Cook Islands Government Economic Response Plan, Interest
Income was recsived by the Group under its agresment with the Cook Islands Government for the COVID-19 interest
Relief Program. Linder this scheme the Governrment contributed 70% of all sligible borrower's interest expense for
the 2021 financial pericd. At the end of each quarter, the Group calculated, by eligible borrower, the total interest
charged and claimed 70% of this amount direct from Crown and applied the subsidy direct to the eligible borrower's
loan account. This has baen recognised in accordance with 1AS 20 Government Grants, No interest was received
under the IRP in the current financial year.

This scheme with the Government constitutes a related party transaction in accordance with NZ IAS 24 Related
Parties.

A Government Grant receivable of $1,300,903 was recognised at 30 June 2021 for the quarter four claim owed to the
Group. The total amount was fully received in July 21.

Crown appropriation

Crown Appropriation revenue is provided by the Cook Islands Governmant through the Budget Estimates and
approved by the Appropriation Bill. Revenue Is intended to be spent within the same financial year. Revenue received
but not spent at balance date is recorded as deferred revenue liability In the Statement of Financial Position.

Ald funding

Aid Funding revenue relates to funding recsived from aid donors for specified projects. Funding received in advance is
recorded as deferred revenue liability and recognised as revenue when atlowable costs are incurred and any
conditions are met. Where allowable costs have been incurred but funding not recsived, the Corporation recognises &
receivable up to the amount of approved funding.

Concessionary Loans

When the Group receivas a ioan at an interest rate that is lower than market terms {concessionary loan), the
difference between the lcan proceads and the fair velue of the loan (calculated using market terms) is recognised as
revenue if there ara no conditions attached to the loan. To the extent that there are conditions attached to the lcan
that would result in early repayment of the loan if these conditions are satisfied, a deferred revenue liability for the
armount of the difference between the loan proceeds and the fair value of the loan is recognisad. Revenue is then
recognised as the Group satisfies its conditions.

Insurance proceeds
Proceeds from insurance claims are recognised as revenue when claims have been assessed and approved. This
revanue is measurad at the fair vaiue of the amount received or receivable.

d)  Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised in the statemant of comprehensive revenue and expenses on an accrugl basis.

Salarias & wages
Salaries & wages are recognised on an accrual basis and include employer contributions for the government
sUperannuation scheme.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

d) Expense recognition {continued)

Interast expense

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is racognised in the Staternent of Comprahensive
Revenue & Expenses as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Lease payments
Leases entered into by the Group as lessee are operating leases, and the opsrating lease payments are recognised as
an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenus & Expenses on & straight-line basis over the lease term.

e) Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tex. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in surplus or daficit
except to the extent that it relstes to a business combinaticn, or items recognised directly in equity or in changes in
net assets/equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable surplus or deficit for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payahle in respect of previous
years.

A tax benafit is recognised in equity for dividends paid by Cook Islands tax paying entities to another Cock Islands tax

payer,

Deferrad tax is recognised in respect of temporary differsnces betwsen the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purnoses and the armounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

= tamporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects naither accounting nor taxable surplus or deficits; and

= temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeabls future.

Deferred tax is maasured at the tax rates that are expacted to be applied to temporary differences when they
revarse, Using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In datermining the amounit of current and deferred tax the Group takes intc account the impact of uncertain tax
positions end whether additional taxes and interest may be dus. The Group belisves that its accruals for tax lizbilities
are adequate for all open tax years based on its assassment of many factars, including interpretations of tax law and
prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about
future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change iis judgement regarding the
adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a
detarmination is made.

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are offsst if there is a legally enforceable right to offset currant tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but thay intend to setile current tax liabilities and assats on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultanscusly.

A deferrad tax asset is recognised for tax credits and deductible temporary differences. A future income tax benefit
{FITB) is recognised for unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets and FITB's are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and FITB's
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.
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Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued}

NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

f} Investment Properiy

tnvestment property is property held sither to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at ¢ost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

Residential buildings held for the primary purpose of providing low income housing have been classifisd as property,
plant, and equipment.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of seli-
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
o bringing the investment property to a working condition for their intended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

Any gain or lcss on disposal of an investment proparty {calculated as the difference hetween the net proceads from
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenus and
Expensss.

g)  Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment is hald at cost. Cost of buildings has besn determined from historical cost or
deemed cost based on previous valuations performed as follows:

i) Buildings transferred to ths Group by the Cook Islands Government are included at their deemed cost, being
the valuation initially recorded in the 1996/7 siatutory accounts of the Government of the Cook Islands less
accumulated deprecistion. Other assets donated by the Cock Islands Government (ultimate parent} or
transferred from Ministries of the Cook Islands Government are recognised at desmed cost heing the value
nominated by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Management for the Cook Islands or relevant Ministry and
are recognised diractly in equity as a contribution frorm owner.

ji} For all other items of preperty, plant and equipment the cost is the value of the consideration given to acquire
ihe assets and the value of other directly attributable costs which have been incurred in bringing the assets to
the location and condition necessary for their intended sarvice.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acguisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the following;

= tha cost of materials and direct labour;

* any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use;

» when the group has an obligation to remove the asset or restors the site, an estimate of the costs of

dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and

= capitalised borrowing costs.

Refar to note 14 for further details.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged an a straight fine basis so as to write off the cost of the fixed assets to their expected
residual valus over their estimated useful lives, Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as

Tollovys:

Leased Jand and leaseheld improvements term of the lease
Buildings 5-50 yoars
Furniture and fittings 4-10 years
Plant and equiprment 2-20 ysars
Motor vehicles 3-10 years
Rescue firg vehicles 3-20 years
Office equipment 2-10 years
Marine equipment 5 years
Wharf structure 40 years
Wharf fixtures 520 years
Runways 5-99 years
Electricity distribution network 5-20 years

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

An asset's carrying amolint is written down immediately tc its recoverable ameount, or recoverable saervice amount, if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount or recoverable service amaunt.

The Group derecognises itams of property, plant and equipment and/ar any significant part of an asset upen disposal
or when no future sconomic benefits or service potential is expected from its continuing use. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset icalculated as the difference between the net disposa! proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the surplus or deficit when the asset is dereccgnised.

When an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration it is initially measured at fair
value. For new assets, fair value is usually determnined by reference to the retail price of the sams or similar assets at
the tims the asset was received. For Usad assets, fair value is usually detarmined by reference to markst prices for
assets of a similar type condiiion and age. When parts of an itemn of property, plant and equipment have different
useful fives, they ere accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipmant.

Any gain or loss on disposal af an item of property, plant and equipment {calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying armount of the itam) Is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Subsequsnt costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only whan it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongeing repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

h) Leases

Group as a lessee

Operating leases are those leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits relating tc ownership of
the leased item to the group. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in surplus or deficit on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The group does not hold any finance leases.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs that are incurred in determining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term.

Rent received from an oparating lease is racognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets include costs incurred in acauiring and building software and computer systems {software).
Software is amortised using the straight-line method over its expectad useful lifa.

At each reporting date, the intangible assets are reviewed for indicators cf impairment if any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the assets are estimated and compared against the axisting carry value. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs 1o sell and its value in use. Where the existing carrying valus
axceads the recoverable amount, the difference is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue &
Expenses.

Costs Incurred in planning or evaluating softwars propesals, or in maintaining systems after implemantation are not
capitalised.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

il Impairment of non-financial assets

At sach raporting date, the group reviews the carrying ameunts of its nor-financial assets (other than deferred tax
assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets
recoversble amount is estimated.

The group’s assets that do nol generate separate cash inflows are tested for impairment as part of testing the overall
group’s assets.

impairment losses are recognised in the Staterment of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.

For assets an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying ameunt doss not exceed the
carrying amcunt that would have bean determined, net of depreciation or amartization, if no impairment loss had
baen recognised.

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Recognition
Financial assets are measured initially et fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition

or issue.

Classification & measurement

The Group's financial assets are all classified and measured at amortised cost.

The Group does not have any financial assets categerised as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are mest and is not designated
as at FVTPL:
= it is held within a business model whose objective is to held assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;

and
= the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest.

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised dirsctly in profit or loss and presented in other gaing/(losses),
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impaitment losses are presented as a separate line item in the
Staterment of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.

k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash holdings, foreign currency cash holdings, short term cash investments and
are carried at amortised cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

1} Loans

Within the Group, Bank of the Cook Islands {"the Bank") issues loans. These are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the group does not intend to sell
immediately or in the near term. They arise when the Bank provides money 1o a debtor with no intention of trading
the loans and advances. After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method less any impairment loss.
Loans include direct finance provided o customers such as current accounts and term loans.

Business Continuity Credit Facility
The Group administers lending on behalf of its ultimate parent, the Government of the Ceook Islands. Through its
agency agreement under the Business Continuity Credit schemsa. Under this scheme eligible businesses are granted
lawy interest loans as a Torm of relief from the Covid-19 impacts. Loans distributed under this scheme are not legal
assets of the Group and therefore are not recognised on the Group's Statement of Financiat Position.
m} Term deposits
This comprises interest-beering deposits held with other banks and are measured at amortised cost in the Statement
of Financial Position.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies {continued}

n}  Income tax receivable

This comprises income tex receivable as incoms tax payments made exceed the current tax due. This will be settled
by receipt of refund or used to meet future income tax payments and is measured at amortised cost in the Statement
of Financial Positicn.

o}  Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group's end of
period valuations of certain loans denominated in SDR (Special Drawing Righis - Unit of account used by the
International Monetary Fund and other international arganizations. Its value is based on a hasket of key international
currencies that currently consists of the euro, yen, pound sterling and the US dollar).

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The Group has not adopted
hedge accounting.

Derivatives are initially recognisad at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered intc and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value at each balance date with the resulting gain or loss recognized in surplus or deficit,
The full fair value of a forward foreign exchange derivative is classified as current as the contract is due for settlement
within 12 months of balance date.

p}  Trade, sundry and other receivables
These include trade receivables from customers, other receivables, including accrued interest on term deposits.
These are carried at amortised cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

q) Identification and measurement of Impairment
A forward-looking expected credit loss model is applied to financial assets in accardance with [PSAS 41 Financial
Instruments . All of the Group's financial assets ars classified as amortised cost.
The Group performs an impairment assessment based on expected credit loss {ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.
The ECL refers to the weighted average of the credit lesses of financial instruments that are weighted by
tharisk of default. Credit loss refers to the difference between all contractual cash flows recsivable from
the contract and ail cash flows expected to be received, discounted at the original real interest rate by the
Group, that is, the present value of all cash shortages.
ECL is calculated based on a function of the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default.
The Group appplies ECL modsl saparately for sach financial asset category measured at amortised cost.
The Group considers impairmant using the ECL model for the following financial assets that are not measured at
FVTPL:

* Cash and cash equivalents

* Term Deposits

* Trade, sundry and other receivables

* Banking portfolio investments

i) Impairment of Cash and cash equivalents and Term deposits
ECL for Cash and cash equivalents and Term deposits is calculeted based on industry standard Probability of default
and loss given default based on the credit rating of sach financial instituion where funds are held.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note

3) Significant accounting policies {continued)
q) Identification and measurement of Impairment (continued)

it) Impairment of Trade, sundry and other receivables
In assessing impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the
amount of loss incurred, adjusted far management’s judgeament as tc whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

As trade and othar receivablas are normally paid within 30 days and do not have a significant financing companent the
Group has applied the simplified approach in IPSAS 41 and therefore only recognising lifetime ECL. Entities within the
Group that have signiifcant customer base, and therefore debtors, have devaloped a provision matrix to determine
ECL. In particular, Te Aponga Uira and Te Mana Uira o Araura, as these entities each operate in only one geographic
segment the matrix is based on customer type (Demand, Cornmercial o Domastic) and debt age {no. days) taking
into account histerical loss exparience for each segment adjusted for forward locking estimates

iii} Impairment of Banking portfolio investments
Segmentation of financial assets:
The Group assesses whether the credit risk has increased significantly on an individual or collective basis. For the
purposes of & collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of account
instrument type.
The Groups Banking portfolic invastments are greuped by the following segments:
- Business

- Personal

- Mortgage
The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial instruments has increased significantly since the
initial recognition, and measures its expectad credit losses {*ECL") and recognises its loss provision and changes
from the prior pericd in the following cases:
) if the credit risk of the financial instrument has not increased significantly, since the initial recogniticn, (¥
internal risk grade = “Pass”), the Group measures its loss provision hased on the amount eqguivalent to the
ECL of the financial instrument inthe next 12 months;
(i) if the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Group
measures its loss provision based on the amount of lifetime expected credit loss {ECL} of the financial instrument. (*
Internal risk grades = special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss}

Under the above circumstances, regardless of whather the Group’s assessment of credit losses is based on a
single financial instrument or a combination of financial instruments, the increase or Teversal of the
loss provision resulting there from is included in the current profit and loss as an impairment oss or gain.

The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses ("ECL") on Banking portfolio
investments. Assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change of their credit quality, since
initial recognition.

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - For financial instruments with no significant increase in credit risk (SICR} after initial
recognition, (internal risk grade = "Pass”), expacted credit losses in the next 12 months are recognised.
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Note 3 Significant accounting policies {continued}
q) Identification and measurement of impairment {continued)

jif) Impairment of Banking portfalio investments (continued)
Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired - For financial instruments with significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
since initial recogniticn linternal risk grade = “Special rmention™), but no objective evidence of impairment, lifetime
sxpacted credit losses are recognised.

Stage 3 Lifetime ECL - credit impaired — For financial assets that show objective evidence of impairment at the end
of the reperting period, lifetime expected credit losses are recognised. This stage comprises ali accounts that are
credit impaired or in default (internal risk grades = “Substandard”, *Doubtful” or “Loss"}.

Under the above circumstances, regardiess ot whether the Group’s assessment of credit losses is based on a
single financial instrument or a combination of financial instruments, theincrease or reversal of the
loss provisicn resulting thare from is included in the current profit and loss as an impairment loss or gain.

Impairment is assessed for loans at a collective and a specific individual level.
The Groups internal credit rating adopted from the guidelines provided by the Banking Prudential Statement
{BPS03} initially defines whether the financial assets are assessed at a collective or a spacific individual level:

Collective Provision

Impairment on financial assets with an intarnal credi rating of “Pass” or " Special Mention” is calculated through the
ECL model.

"Pass” if the asset is fully protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the borrower and the
horrower  is performing in accordance with contractual terms and is expected to continue to do so.

*Spacial Mention' if the asset is past due for the payment of principat or interest for more than 30 {thirty) days but
less than 90 (ninety) days; or although currently protected, exhibits potential weaknesses which may, i
not corracted, weaken the asset or inadeguately protect the Group's position at some future date.

All loans classified in the personal segmant are assessed in the ECL model irrespective of their probability of default
and form part of the collective provision.

Some financial assets with an internal credit rating of ”Substandard”, “Deoubtful” or ¥Loss" and have been
assessad Individuglly for the likelihood of future credit losses through the individual provisioning method and
do notrequire a specific individual provision are assessed inthe ECL model and form part of the collective
provision.

Specific Individual Provision

Financial assets with an internal cradit rating of “Substandard”, “Doubtful” or *“Loss” are individually
assessad using the individual provisioning method and  consider  the likelihood of future credit losses by
evaluating a range of possible cutcemes, the time value of money, past events, security held, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

"Substandard" if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for more than 30 days but less than
180 days: or is a renegotiated loan which has had its terms or interest rate modified because of weaknesses or
deterioration in the obligor's financial condition or ability to repay.
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Note 3 Significant accounting policies {continued}
q) Identification and measurement of Impairment {continued)

iii} Impairment of Banking portfolio investments {continued)
"Doubtful' if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for mers than 18C days but less than
360 days; orexhibits all the weaknesses of asubstandard asset and, in addition, is not bacause
these weakenesses make celiection in full highly questionable and improbabls.

"Loss' if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for more than 360 days, unless such an
asset is well secured and legal action has actually commenced and the time to realise on collateral orena
guarantes relating to the asset does not exceed 180 days, had been characterised as “Doubktful” on account of any
‘pending event’ and the eventconcerned has not occurred and the asset is now past dus for the payment of
principat or interest for more than 540 days, whether or not the svent is still pending; orregardless of its
past due status it isotherwise considered uncollectible or considered to be of such little value that its
continuance as an asset on the books of the Group is not warranied provided that a Loss classification shall not
preclude the possibility of recovering the asset or securing a salvage value for it.

ECL mods!
ECL are estimates of credit losses and are determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time
value of money, past events, current conditions and forecasts of future sconomic conditions.

The Group's ECL is calculeted on a per segment basis with the corresponding PD, LGD and Cure Rate and
is the sum of all segment ECLs.

Where:

- Probability of default (PD): the probability that a counterparty will default;

- Loss given default {LGD): the loss that is expected 1o arise in the event of default

- Cure Rate (CR): the historical average % of Defaulted Loans that migrated out of a defaulted status

- Exposure at default (EAD): the estimated outstanding amount of credit exposure at the time of default, which is
the outstanding loan amount that is at risk of default at a certain point in time.

- Discount Factor: adjustment to calculate the impact of a future payment at time 0, which is assumed to be
reporting date. Calculated from the time ‘t’ (12 month or lifetime) and the effective Interest Rate (EIR)

- OQverlay: Circumstances and conditions may exist that cause management to believe in the requirernent for loan
provisioning in addition to that determined by the ECL modal. In this case a management overlay would be
considered.

The provision for lcan impairment is deducted from loans in the Statement of Financial Position and the movement
for the reporting period is reflected in the Statement of Compighensive Revenue & Expenses.

When a loan, within the loan bock, is uncollsctible, either partially or in full,it is writtan off against tha related
provision for loan impairment. Subsequent recaveries of amounts praviously written off are taken to the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenus & Expenses.

Where impairment losses recagnised in previous pericds have subsequently decreased or no longer exist, such
impairment losses are reversed in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses,

Refer to Note 3 'Critical estimates and judgements used in applying accounting policies’ below for update on
estimates and judgements due to the impact of tha COVID-19 pandemic.

Derecognition

The Group derscognises a financial asset when the contractuzl rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the Group is recognisad as a separate asset or liability.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Recognition

Financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not &t fair value through surplus or deficit,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification & measurement

All financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities and are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate and include: trade and other payables, banking custorner deposits, related party payables, dividend
payable, and income tax payable.

r) Employee benefits

Long-term emplovee benefits

The Group‘s net obligation in respect of long-terrn employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, That benefit is discounted to determine its
present valug. Rermneasurements are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expensss In the
period in which they ariss.

Shori-term emploves benefits
Shori-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liakility is recognised for the amount

axpected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or censtructive obligation to pay this emount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

s) Provisions

The Group recognises provisions whan there is a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required te settle the obligation. The arnount
recognised is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present cbligation at the reporting dats,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at the reporting date. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present okligation, fts carrying amount is the present value of
thosa cash flows.

1) Dividends
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised only when the sharehclder’s or the Group’s right to receive
payrents is established.

Derecognition 7
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract Is discharged cancelled or expires.
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Note

3 Significant accounting policies {continued}

PRESENTATION
u) - Offsetting of income and expenses
Income and expenses are not offset unless required or permitted by an accounting standard. This ganerally arises in
the following circumstances:
- where gains and losses arise fram a Group of similar transactions such as foreign exchange gains and losses.

- where amounts are collected on behalf or third parties where the Group is, in substance, acting as an agent
only, or

- where costs are incurred on behalf of customers from whom the Group is reimbursed.

v) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Positien only where there
is:

- acurrent enforceable legal right to offset the asset and liability, and

- anintention and ability to settle on a net basis or 1o realise the asset and settie the liability simultanecusly.

w} Statement of cash flows

For cash flow statement presentation purposas, cash and cash equivalent includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with other financial institutions, and othar short term, highly liquid, investments that are readily convertible 1o cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Certain cash flows have been netted in order to provide more meaningful disclosure as many of the cash flows are
received and disbursad on behalf of custormars and reflect the activities of the customer rather than those of the
Group. These include customer loans and advancas, custorner deposits, and related party balances.

x) Value added tax

Incoms, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of valus added tax (VAT) except where the amount of
VAT incurred is not recoverable from the Revenue Management Division (RMD). In thesa circumstances, the VAT s
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included. The net amount of VAT recoverabla from, or
payabla to the RMD is included as, other assets or other liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Statemant of Cash Flow on a net basis. The VAT compoenents of cash flows arising
from investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from, or payable to, the RMD are classified as operating
cash flows.

y)  Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a liability of sufficient uncertainty that it does not gualify for recognition as a provision, but
there is a possible obligation that Is higher than remote.

2) Related parties

The Group regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exart control individually or jointly, or to
exercise sighificant influsnce over the Group, or vice versa. Members of key rnanagement are regarded as related
parties and comprise the directors gnd senior management of the Cook Islands Investrment Corporation and Group.
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Note 3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with IPSAS. However, there are a number of critical
accounting treatments which include complex or subjective judgments and estimates that may affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial staternents. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are basad on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of futurs events that are believad
t¢ be reasonable under the circumstances.

An explanation of the judgements and estimates made by the Group in the precess of applying its accounting
policies, that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financia! stater‘(]ents are set out
below.

Credit provisioning _
The accounting policy relating to measuring the impairment of banking portfolio investments (loans & advancas)
requires the Group 1o assess impzairment at least at each reperiing date. The credit provisions raised represent
management’'s bast estimate of the losses incurred in the loan portfolio at balance date basad on their
experienced judgemsnt. .

The use of such judgements and reasonable estimates is considersd by management to be an essential part of the
process and doss not impact on reliability.

Management regularly reviews and adjusts the sstimates and methodologies as improved analysis becomes
available. Changes in these assumptions and methadologies could have a dirsct impact on the level of provision
and impairment charge recorded in the financial statements.

Refer to Note 3(g} and Note 23(ii} for details of credit impairment provisicns.

MNon-credit provisioning

Within the Group, the Bank holds non-credit related provisicns in respect of future obligations such as long service
leave. The Bank offers a long service benefit for zll employees that server the Bank for 15 years. An additional
benefit is earned after every b years of service after the initial 15 years of service. The Bank provides for this
lizkility under the assumption that the likelihood that the employee will receive the benefitis propartional to the
ratio of the service thet had been achisved aver the service period required. All provisions for long service leave
are calculated using actual benefits earnad less bensfits taken plus ths propration of the next benefit costed at the
current cost for that ernployec.

COVID-19 impact on credit performance

The Group's approach to incorporating the effect of Covid-18 on the banking portfolio investments ECL calculations
was guided by a recognition that there continuas to be significant uncertainty from the sconcmic impacts of the
pandemic particularly around the recovery.

The rasulting ecenomic impact of the pandemic remains to be significant at the reporting date and continues to
impact the ability of a nurnber of borrowers to maintain loan repayments. A number of Initiatives wara put in place
to support borrowers during the period of 1 March 2020 to 31 March 2022 including deferred payments and
interest only terms.

At reporting date the economic environment is supported by the re-opening of borders and the reduction of COVID-
18 related restrictions both locally and internationally. This has resulted In increased levels of tourism that are
supporting economic recovery. Howaver, there remains a level of aconomic uncertainty around the time and
extent of recovery particularly whers insufficient time has passed for an appropriate assessmant around whether
recent borrower performance is sustainable. This provides additional factors of uncertainty during the current year
and this is reflected in the Group's approach 1o its estimation of axpected credit losses on loan receivables.

The estimation unceriainty is associated with:

- The extent and duration of the residual economic impacts of the pandemic (including forecasts for key
economic factors including GDP and CPY);
- the impact of the progressive remaval of bank relisf and governmant support Initistives thet were put in
place to support businesses and consumers through the pandemic; and
- the extent of financial recovary for individual borrowers and tirne required to restors loan performance to pre-
pandemic levels, recognising that In the worst case there rmay be some permanent deterioration in individual
loan performance and quality.
Although the approach to ECL calculations and foermulae remain unchanged from the prior year, the Group has
updated relevant data inpuis 1o reflect the impacts of Covid-18 en credit performance.

Key Covid-19 impacts wera:
- Macroeconomic data updated 1o refiect changes in forecasted sconomic impacts;
- Restaging of Joans betwsen stags 1 and stage 2 where significant increass in cradit risk (SICR} is chsaerved

- Extended loan terms where the Group entered into deed of variation related to COVID-19 relief.
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Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

COVID-19 impact on credit performance (continued)

Macroeconomic Data

The Group has used the Government's actual and forecasted economic indicators of GDP and CPI as issued in the
Government of the Cook Islands Budget Book 2021 - 2026.

| Real GDP 5
YOY | Implied | Nominal |
Growth | CPIYoY | GDP YoY ;

1 -1820% | -1460%
LN 0.477% (42100

| 2.846%| 17.20%

_ 7406  saisil 1110

(30/06/25_ 370% -0059%  350%
_30/06/26]  350%| 1.250%  4.80%

Average | 3.63% | 1579% | 5.68%

Stage 1 to Stage 2 loans
An assessment of all loans not individually provided for was undertaken to determine whether there was a SICR that
would reguire loans to be restaged from Stage 1 to Stage 2.

Following various COVID-19 relief initiatives, such as payment deferrals and interest only terms

offered to customers during the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022, it has been

determined that a SICR existed at year end for those borrowers that took up this relief. The SICR

reflects:
- The increased level of inherent credit risk present on loans that historically required COVID-19 relief:
- The relatively short period of time that a number of these loans have had to demonstrate sustainable

repayment ability; and

- The remaining economic uncertainty that remains at reporting date.

On this basis all loans, not individually impaired, that took up COVID-19 relief from Phase 3 to 7 were restaged from
Stage 1 to Stage 2.

The COVID-19 impacts and data input adjustments resulted in a 58% increase in the ECL reported at 30 June 2022
compared with the ECL recorded as at 30 June 2019 i.e. before the outbreak of the pandemic. The ECL approach in
the current year Is consistent with the previous year and an increased level of provisioning remains.

Expected credit losses reported by the Group should be considered as a best estimate Es at the year ended 30 June
2022. ‘
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~ Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies {continued}

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued)

COVID-19 impact on Trade receivables

Due to tha impacts of COVID-18 on the Group and its customers, an assessment was undertaken 1o consider the
nacessity for an additional "management overlay" to reflect the current economic uncertainty and situtaion within the
Cook Islands. In particular Tor Te Aponga Uira, a management overlay was determined by assessing the aging of trade
receivables pre-Covid and comparing this 1o post-Covid conditions to develop a worsening ratio. This ratio was then
applied to the year end ECL determined by the existing ECL modal {matrix} in use.

For other entities within the Group where the customar bass is not as substantial, adjustments to year end
provisioning have been made 1o reflect subsequent customer recsipts as this is considerad to be the best form of
evidence of collectability.

COVID-19 impact on impairment considerations for Property, plant and equipment
The Group has considered the impacts of COVID-19 on its property, plant and equipment and whether impairmeant
exists as a result. The Groups assets remain in use with no detericration in assets or shortening of useful lives as a
result of the pandemic. No excess capacity is consisderad to exist, with existing asset levels considered necessary 1o
meet minimum opsrating reguirements. The Group concluded that whilst there has been significant impacts on the
Cook Islands economy as a whole, given the nature of the Group's activities, in particular, the essential service nature
of the utilities and asset management and asset holding functions the entities provide on behalf of the Cock Islands

- Government, no impairment of property, plant and squipment is considered to exist as & result of COVID-19 impacts.

OTHER JUDGEMENTS

Deferred tax assets

The Group has judged, based on current and recent past perfermance and budget/business plans in place, that thers
will be sufficient taxable income in the future to utilise taxable differences that are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future and has therefore recognised a deferred tax asset. Refer to Note 18.

Yield related fees
The group hes raeviewed all fees and has judged thet ioan establishment fess are integral to the vield of the product.
These faes have been included as part of the calculation of the effective interest rate.

Member's valuation of selected fixed assets

Certain fixed assets have been included in the Staternent of Financial Position based on valuations performed by the
Mernbers. This is due 1o difficulties experienced in obtaining infermation relating to these assets. This treatmeni is a
departure from IPSAS 17 Property, Plant, and Equipment. The audit report of these financial statements is qualified in
this regard. Refer to Note 14.

Work in progress receivables
Work in progress recelvables represent managements best estimate of percentage of completion for capital projects.
Management consider that costs incurred to balancs date fairly represent the stage of completion.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note

Note

3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received tc sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. When available the Group measures the fair value of an
instrurnent using the guoted price in an active market for that instrurnent. If thera is no quoted price in an active
market, then the Group uses valuation technigues that maximise the use of relevant obsearvable inputs and minimise
the use of unchservable inputs. The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at intial recognition is
nermally the transaction prica.

The Group measures fair value using the following hierarchy:

Level 1: inputs that are quoted rmarket prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments,

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observed directly or indirectly, and

Level 3: inputs that are unobservable.
Due to the nature of fingncial instruments that the Group holds, the fair value and carrying value of financial

CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies are consistent with the those applied in the preparation of the Group's annual financial
staternents for the year ended 30 June 2021.

4 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards have been issued which were not
yet effective at balance sheet date and which the Group has not early adopted..:

IPSAS 40 PBE Combinations ‘
The Group has net yet assessed the impact of these siandards.

The Group early adopted IPSAS 41 Financial Instruments effectiva from 1 July 2018.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 5 Sundry Income

Group Parent

30 June Ge i g0n 3 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2021 2021
Sundry revenue 1,358 ; 135

136
Note 6 Other expenses
Advertising 13
Electricity 14
Fees paid to group auditor - audit services 109
Fees paid to group auditor - non audit services -
Fees paid to other auditors - audit services -
Motor vehicle expenses 19
Payment on behalf of Crown 503
Staff training expenses 17
Travel expenses 13
Other operating expenses 218
Total Other expenses 907
Note 7 Employee entitlements

Current
Acgrued salaries and wages 62
Annual leave 76
Current employee entitlements 137
Non-current
Long service leave accrual -
MNon-current employee entitlements -
Total employee entitlements 137
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 8 Cash and cash equivalents
Group Parent

30 June Jhe 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2021 2021
Cash on hand 1,487 -
Cash at bank 26,883 1,251
Total cash and cash equivalents 28,170 1,281
Less Allowance for Doubtful Dabt {178) (17
Net cash and cash equivalents 27,992 1,234
Note 9 Term Deposits
Group
30 June 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2021 2021
Less than 12 months 37.607 768
Over 12 months 8,483 -
Total term deposits 46,080 768
Lass Allowance for Doubtful Debt 422)
Net term deposits 45,668 768
Short term deposits are made for varying pericds, depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group and earn interest at the respective short term deposit rate.
Note 10  Receivables from exchange transactions
Group
30 June 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2021 2021
Current receivables 3418 162
Less; impairmant allowance {1,792) (B3}
Total receivables from exchange tr tions 1,623 108
As &t 30 June 2022, the ageing analysis of current exchange receivables is as follows:
Group
Nefther past
due or
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Total impaired <30 days 30-60 days =60 days
As at 30 June 2021
Total receivables from exchange
transactions 3,418 753 1,082 264 1,316
Neither past
due or
I thousands of New Zealand Dollars Total impaired <30 days 30-60 days >80 days
As at 30 June 2022
Total raceivables from exchangs
transections 5,079 4,835 32 46 166
Parent
Neither past
due or
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars Total impaired <30 days 30-60 days >80 days
As at 30 June 2021
Total receivables from exchange E
transactions 162 21 - 37 104
Neither past
due or
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Total impaired <30 days 30-60 days >B60 days
As at 30 June 2022
Total raceivables from exchange
transactions 72 45 27
43
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 11 Related parties

30 Jun 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 202 -2021
Related party receivables
Govarnment of the Cook Islands 1,30 -
Cook Island Property Corporation (NZ} Limited 7
Avaroa Cables Limited 201
To Tatou Vai Limited 3
Cook Islands Telecommunication Heldings Limited 18
Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited 106
Banana Court Company Limited -
Ministry of Foreign Affairs And Immigration -
Ministry of Finance and Economic Management 1,664 -
CIC Seabed Rasourcas Limited 171 171
Total related party receivahles 506
The balances are repayable on demand are unsecured and do not bear interest,
Pargnt
: 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2021
Dividends receivable
Te Aponga Uira O Tumu-te-Varovaro -
Total dividends receivable -
44
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 11

Related parties {continued}

Group Parent
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
In thousands of Nevv Zealand Dollars 2022 2021 2022 2021

Related party payables - Current

Government of the Cook Jslands
Telecomn Cook Islands
Ministry of Finance and Economic Managemant

Banana Court Company Limited 5
Avaroz Cables Limited -
Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited -
CHC Seabed Resources Limited 108
Cook Islands Property Cerporation (NZ) Limited -
Cook Islands Government Property Corporation 1,401
Total related party payables - current 1,815
30 June
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2021
Dividends payable
Government of the Cook Jslands -
Toial dividends payable -
The related party balances do not have fixed repayment terms, are unsecured and no interest is payable.
Key Management Personnel - Parent
Key managemant personnal of the Corporation include the Board of Directors and the senicr management team
being the Chief Executive Cfficer and General Managers - Crown Enterprise, Asset Development, Asset
Management, Land & Legal and Corperate Service/ CFO.
30 Juns
2021
Total Number of
remuneration persons
: {000's)
Board of Directors 155 5
Senicr Management 727 6 717 7
Key Management Personngl - Group
30June
2021
Total Number of
remunegration persons
{000"s})
Board of Directors 772 51 738 a7
Senior Management 4,189 44 4,214 46
45
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report Tor the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 11

a)

]

d}

k}

Related parties {continued)

Meterial related party income and expenditure:

The Group entities undertake numerous transactions with other Government entities in the normal course of their
business including electricity in Rarotonga and Aitutaki, Port and Airport charges, banking services, as well as
property rentals. These transactions are not matarial, are conducted at cornmercial rates and have therefore not

been disclosed separately.

The Group provides electricity to various Government entities outside of the Group through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Te Aponga Uira O Tumu-te-Varovaro (Te Aponga). Entities within the Group paid $590,000 (2021:
$620,000} to Te Aponga for electricity services which has been eliminated on consolidation. Electricity goods and
services provided to related parties are transacted on normal trading terms.

The Group provides telecommunication services to various Government entities cutside of the Group through its
associate, Telecomn Cook Islands Limited. Entities within the group paid $419,323 (2021: $617,000) to Telecom
Cook Islands for telecommunication services, Cormmunication services provided to related partias are transacted on
normal trading terms.

ivlany of the properties owned by Cook Islands Government Property Corporation are tenanted by Ministries of the
Government of the Cook Islands. In general, rental income is not received for the use of thess assets, as
Government Ministries are not appropriated for this cost.

The property ownad by Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited is tenanted by the Ministry of Foreign
Affalrs and Immigration. No rental is charged io the tenant.

The Corporation uses the Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited bank account to pay for NZ payments
whan required. These are charged back to the Cerporation through the intercompany batance.

Government appropriation incorne was raceived by the Group of $12,420,000 (2021: $15,255,000).

Capital project lisbility relates to project funding received by CIIC from Cook Islands Government and othar funding
agencies for the completion of capital asssts. These assets are recognised as Work in progress receivable in the
Staternent of Financial Position for which on completion the asset is to be returnad to Crown.

Cook Islands Government Property Corporation mads a revenue transfer of $549,000 (2021: $519,000) to the
Corporation in accordance with Section 31(2) of the Cook Islands Investment Corporation Act 1998, The transfer
has been recognised as revenus within the Statement of Comprehensive Revenus and Expenses of the
Corporatfon.

Equity injactions for the Group in 2022 was $5,224,000 (2021: $8,614,000) being assets consisting of $517,000 of
capital assets for To Tatou Vai Limited, $2,894,000 of runway upgrades for Airpert Authority, $50,000 of squity
injected for Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) and $1,763,000 of completed buildings and extensions
transferred to the Cook Islands Government Property Corporation.

The parent received $nil dividends for the year (2021: $819,000) from subsidiaries. The Group received $nil tax
benefit (2021: $nil) in relation to dividends paid o the parent, Cook Islands Investment Corporation, a tax paying
entity.

Included in trade and other payables is an amount due to Cack Islands Police of $70,967 (2021 $446) for motor
vehicle registrations administered by Bank of the Cook Islands on behalf of the Cook Islands Police.

During the year the bank sarned motor vehicle registration commissions of $254,000 (2021: $255,000) and social
welfare transaction fees of 275,000 (2021: $20,000) at Bank of the Cook Islands.

Included in Other lending fees is nil (2021: $235,000) relating to adminstration fees charged to the Government of
the Cook Islands for administering the Business Continulty Credit Facility scheme.

Included in related party recelvables is nil (2021: $1,301,000, relating to the Government Grant Receivable to Bank
of the Cook Islands for the quarter four Interest Relief Program. The Bank received nil (2021: $5,385,00) in total
covering 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 under this program

Interest rates charged on balances cutstanding from related parties are preferential and range from 1% to 6% off
what would be charged in an arm’s Tength transaction. The mortgages and secured loans granted are secured over
property of the respactive borrowers, Other balances are not secured and ne guarantees have besn abtained.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 11  Related parties {continued)

] Banana Court Company Limited leases land and buildings frem Cook Islands Government Property Corporation. The company
paid leasehold commissions and lease fees of $2,103 (2021: $871) during the current year. The lease is for a period of 30 years
from 1 September 1990. For the first 10 years of term the rental was $100 per annum. Fer the remaining period the lessee pays
to the lessor an amount of 12.5% of the rent or consideration received from subleasing of the land after tax.

On 3 December 2020 the lease was renawed for a further 30 years from 1 September 2020. The rental continues to be
calculated and payable at an amount of 12.5% of the rent or consideration received from subleasing of the land after tax.

m}  Audit fees for Cook Islands Government Property Corporation are borne by the Corporation. The Corporation provides oversight
and management for Cock Islands Government Property Corporation as the 2 entities are considered to operate as ons.

Note 12  Banking portfolio investments

The following is a summary of the leans porticlio by industry sector as at 30 June 2022

Group Total Cue
within Over
Cne Year One Year
2021 2027 2021
In thousands of New Zealand
Agriculture 60 8 53
Fishing 262 41 221
Consumer 8,146 : 3,357 4,789
Business 21,869 876 20,993
Housing 44,882 3,884 40,998
Staff 3,542 449 3,093
Tourism 14,165 756 13,408
92,927 9,370 83,657
LESS:
Prevision for doubtful loans 6,710
Pravision for non-perfarming
Deferred income 783
Net Portfolio as at 30 June 86,434
Split by:
Current Z: 8,613
Non - current 5,621 76,821
82,513 85,434
All loans have been made at varying interest rates, terms and securities. Loans attract the following
intersst rates:
Housing 3.8% to 9.26% (2021: 3.8% to 12.25%)
Development (including Business} - 7.2% to 12.5% (2021: 7.2% t0 16.25%)
Consumar - 9.25% to 16.6% (2021: 10.25% to 16.5%)
The Group administers loans totalling $6,839,441 (2021: $7,023,000) on behalf of the Government
of the Cook Islands under the Business Continuity Credit Scheme. These loans distriputed under
this scheme are not legal assets of the Group and therefore ara not racognised on the Group's
Statement of Financial Position.
The following significant individual counterparty exposures existed at balance date:
Group 2021
In thousands of New Zealand O
#
Percent of Equity Counter Lean Percentage
Range Parties Balance of Bank's Equity
5-10% 4 5,805 33.27%
+10% 4 10,088 56.36%
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 12  Banking portfolio investments (continued)

Provision for Losses on Bantking Portfolio Investments

Group
30 June

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2021
The total charge of provisions was made up as follows:

PROVISIONS FOR DOUBTFUL LOANS
Opening balancs 8,649
Opening transfer from Non-perferming Interest -
Movement in provision as a result of IFRS @ -
Bad debts written out of provisions {1,248}
Allowance for hardship -
Provisions for doubtful foans 1,408
Balance at end 8,710
Net increase/(decreass) in provision for doubtful
loans 161

MNote 13  Inventories |

Parent
30 June
2021

30 June
2021

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Trading stock 5,521 1
Spare parts 24 -
Fuels 1,289

Cther 164 -

Total inventories

EEER
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Note 14 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

PARENT

i o TomL
Cost
At 1 July 2020 ‘ 365 221 586
Additicns 50 3 53
Disposals - - -
Transfersfadjustmants - - -
At 30 June 2021 415 224 639
Additions 51 - 51
Disposals - - -
Transfers/adjustments - - -
At 30 June 2022 466 224 690
Depreciation and
Impairment
At 1 July 2020 (282) {169) (451)
Disposals - - -
Depreciation {36) (17) {53)
Irpairment - - -
Transfers/adjustments - - -
At 30 June 2021 (318) {186) {504)
Disposals - - -
Depreciation (43) (18) {61)
Impairment - - -
Transfefs/adjustments - - -
At 30 June 2022 (361) (204} {565)
Net Book Values
At 1 July 2020 83 52 135
At 30 June 2021 97 38 135
At 30 June 2022 105 20 125




Cook Islands Investrnent Corporation
Annual report for the vear ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

Note

14 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Determination of Cost:

Buildings are measured at cost. Cost is based on histerical costs or deemed cost based on pravious valuations
as detailed below:

Rental houses were valued at $1.8 million (2021: $1.8million) by John McFlhinney of Rarotenga, a registered
valuer, in May 1989. The valugtion Includes buildings only and no attempt has been made to place a valuation
on the land. This May 1889 valuation is the deemed cost anplied for thesa rental houses.

The Rarotonga Hospitel Administration Block is measured at cost less aceurnulated dspreciation.

The Court House, Police Headquarters and Multi Sports Complex are recorded at the value neminated by the
Ministry of Finance and Economic Managsment for the Cock Islands being the cost of construction,

All other Cook Islands Government Property Corporation bulldings are stated at desmad cost baing valuations
perfermed by members and initizlly recerded in the 1996/97 statutory accounts for the Governmant of the
Cock Islands less accumulated depreciation.

The Mulgrave Street property in Wellington owned by Cook !slands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited was
valued by Darroch Limited in August 2010, for insurance purposes providing depreciated replacemant cost of
$602,000. An earlier valuation by DTZ New Zealand in Qctober 2008 placed a market value of $1,500,000 for
land and buildings in Mulgrave Street. This property is held at cost in the financial statements.

Subsequent to 30 June 2021, Cook lslands Investment Corperation on behalf of Cook Islands Property
Corporation {(NZ) Limited, re-engaged Darroch Limited to previde an updated valuaticn report for the insurance

" renewal purposes for the property. On the 6th of September the depreciated replacement cost is $1,067,000

with a reinstetement estimate of $2,307,000.

The building owned by Bank of the Cook Islands Limited is valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. This
building was valued at $7,900,000 by Jonas Lang LaSelic Hotels Limited in iviay 2014, Tha remaining term of
the BCi House lease is b years.

Leased Land

Cook Islands Government Property Corporation leased lend is stated at desmed cost being the initial value
recorded in the 1986/97 statutory accounts for the Government of the Cook isiands less depreciation whare
applicabla.

Restrictions on Disposals
Fixed assets held by Cook Islands Governmant Property Corporation and its subsidiaries cannot be disposed

of without prier consent of Cabinet.

Ownership and completeness of assets

These assets disclosed in these financial statements may notbe a complets presentation of all assets falling
under the ownarship and for ontrol of the Corporation and Group. The assets presented are included on the
basis of the current understanding of the Members at the time the financial statsments ware prepared.

Transfer of agseis from Crown owned entities

These assets are recorded at the value nominated by the Ministry of Finance and Fconomic Management for
the Cook islands or relevant Crawn owned entity based on the cost of censtruction and are recognised directly
in equity as a contribution from owner.

Members' valuation of selected fixed assets

Except as disclosed elsewhsre in this nots, fixed assets have been Includad in the Statement of Financia!
Position based on valuations performed by the Members. As in prior years, historical fixed assets have been
recorded in the financial statements at nil value. This is due to difficulties experienced in obtaining information
relating to these assets, due 1o ioss of historical accounting records.

This treatment is a departure from IPSAS 17 Property, piant and equipment which notes an appraisal of an
asset is normally underiaken by a member of the valuation profession, who holds a recognised and relevant
professional gualification. The audit report of these financia! staternants is gualified in this regard.

Asset valuation reserve

On 1 Ocicber 2020 a valuation wes performad by Alexander Napa Consultancy over Te Mana Uira o Araura
Limited's buildings and transformer shelter asssts. The total valuation was $1 ,702,000. The values have been
applied at 30 June 2020. As a result of the valuation, a reveluation reserve of $836,000 has been recognised
pertaining to an uplift in existing asset values, as well as an equity injsction of $430,000 to record building and
shelter assets not previeusly recognised by the Company.

Impairrnant
Te Mana Uira O Araura Limited
An impairment of $84,746 has bgen recognisad for the current year pertaining 1o Generator 2 that has brakan
down, is no longer in use and the Company has no intention to restore the asset.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual repart for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 15 Intangible Assets

GROUP
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Carrying
Cost Armount
At 1 July 2020 6,228
Additions 158
Transfer 112
At 30 June 2021 6,498
Additions 178
Transfer
6,677
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 July 2020 3,882
Transfer 44
Amertisation for the year 521
At 30 June 2021 4,647
Transfer 0
Amortisation for th 397
e 1004
Work in progress
At1 July 2021 2
Additions o]
At 30 June 2022 9
Transfer 0
Al isati he year 0
9
Net book values
At 1 July 2020 2,246
At 30 June 2021 1,960
— 742

Intangible assets Include costs incurrad in acquiring and building software and computer systems
{software}. Software is amortised using the straight line method over its expected useful life.

MNote 16 Investment property

Group 30 June 30 June
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022 2021
Opening balance 1 July 5,824 8,070
Additions / {Disposals) . -

Transfer - -
Depreciation (246} {246}

Closing balance at 30 June 5578 5,824

Investmant property includes buildings and premises awned by the Airpert Authority, Ports Authority, and
Cook Islands Property Corporatien (NZ} Limited. Investment property is carried at cost.

for
- identification
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Cock Islands lnvestment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 3C June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 17 Trade and other payables

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 30 June
2021
Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions
Trade creditors 405
Interest accrual .
Provisions -
Other payables and accruals 212
Total trade and other payables from
617

exchange transactions

Trade and other payables from non-
exchange transactions

Value added tax
Total trade and other payables from non-
exchange transactions

Total trade and other payables 617

Provisions

In thousands of Newr Zealand Dollars 30 June
2021

Opening land lease provision
Additional provision made In the period
Provisien utlised in the period

Closing land lease provision

QOpening other provision
Additional provision made in the period
Closing other provision

Total Provision

Included in Provisions is land lease provision related 1o outstanding rent reviews and leass payments to
landowners. The Group has estimated the provision based on the current status of negotiations with
landowners and consideration of recent renewals and valuations performed by registered valuers across
the Cook Islands' property market.

In the prior year, the availakility of more recent renewals and valuations data resulted in a revision in
provisions related to outstanding renawals and as a result an increase in the overall lease provision in

2021.
Lease negotiations are ongoing. Actual amounts owing are determined once lease agreements are

signed. The lease pravision is non-interest bearing.
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Notes to the tinancial statements (continued)

Note 18 Taxes
Group Parent

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2021

Income tax receivable

Income tax recaivable (payable) c/f 1 July
Reclassified from / (to) tax payable
Reclassified from future income tax benefit
Income tax on current year surplus

Income tax paid

Income tax benefit on dividends paid
Income tax receivable 30 June

Future Income Tax Benefit

Future Incorne Tax Benafit off 1 July
Reclassified from / {to) tax payable

Tax lossses recognised in current year surplus
Income tax benefit on dividend paid

Income tax receivabie 30 June

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset off 1 July
Reclassified from deferred tax liakiiity
Deferred tax on current year surplus
Deferred tax asset 30 June

Income tax payable

income tax payable ¢ff 1 July

Reclassified to tax recsivable

Incoms tax on current year surplus

Income tax paid

Tax benefit on dividends paid

Reclass from prior year adjustment
Reclassified to FiITB

Adjustment for RMD advice on FX treatment
Income tax payable 30 June

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability ¢ff 1 July
Deferred tax on current year surplus
Reclass from prior year adjustment
Reclassified 1o defarred tax asset
Deferred tax liahility 30 June

Tax Losses

Opening tax losses
Utilisation of tax losses
Addition of tax losses
Closing tax losses 20 June
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the tinancial statements (continued)

Note 18 Taxes (continued)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Group Parent

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Surpius before taxation for the year
(Surplus)/deficit for tax exempt entities
Lquity accounted sarnings from associate

Profit excluding tax

Prima facie taxation at 20%

Difference for tax at other rates (NZ 30%)

Tax effect of non-assessable income

Tax effact of non-deductible expensas

Tax effect on pricr period adjustments

Tax on dividend distributed to Government by tax exermpt
entity

Taxable Income not recognised in accounts
Application of prior year tax losses

Tax losses net recognised

Additional tax losses accurnulated

Tax impact on Leases accounting under IFRS 16
Income tax expense

Income tax expense is represented by:

Current
Deferred

Income tax losses carried forward:

Individual entities within the group have combined carried forward 1ax losses of $3,299,000 (2021: $2,332,000). These
tax losses are Unable to be offset and can only be used by the individual companies. Thess losses have not been
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

These tax losses have no expiry date provided there is 40% continuity in ownership and the taxation laws in relation o
these do not change.

Within the group, Cook Islands Government Property Corporation is exempt from taxation under the Income Tax Act
1997,

_ for
g Mification
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Notes to the financial statements (cohtinued)

Note

Note

19 Investment in shares

The reconciliation of non-current investrnents is as follows:

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Cook Islands Investment Corperation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Carrying
Amount

Parent

Fair Value

Financial instruments at cost

Investment in Shares
QOpening balance at 1 July 2020
Additionai investrnents made
Investments sold
At 30 June 2021
Additional Investrments made
Investmnents sold

At 30 June 2022

There have been no changes to investments in shares during the 2022 period.
Shares held at year end relate 1o the Group's investment in Asian Development Bank {ADB} and Hawaiian Airlings. The
shares are held within the Group by Cook Islands Government Property Corporation and Airport Authority (respectively),

20 {a) Investment in Associates

These financial statements include the financial statements of the Group and the controlled entities listed in the following

table:

Associate entities are those in which the Corporation has a substantial sharsholding and in whose commercial and financial
pelicy decisions it participates but dees not have any controlling interest.
Telecom Cook Islands Limited is incorporated in the Cock Islands and provides telecommunication services to the Cock

lslands. The Group's interest in Telecom Cook Islands Limited is held by Cook |slands Telecornmunication Holdings

Limited. During 2020 Telecom Cook Islands Limited changed its balance date fromn 31 December to 31 March.

ClIC Seabed Resources Limited was established during the 2018 period. The principal activity of ClIC Seabad Resources
Limited is the exploration, classification, exploitation, marketing and selling of polymetallic nodules within the Cook Islands
Exclusive Economic Zons and the Cook Islands assigned area within the Clarion Clipperton Zone. The Company is 50%
owned by the Cook slands Investrent Corporation and 50% by GSR-CI Limited. The ultimate Parent Cornpany of GSR-CI
Limited is Global Sea Mineral Resources NV, a Company incorporated and registered in Belgium.

Ownership

Total Assets

$000's

Total
Liabilities

$000's

Total Income

$000's

Total
Profit/{loss)

$000's

Telecorn Cook Islands Limited {12 months

to 31/03/21) 40% 35,081 4,151 21,808 1,901
ClC Seebed Resources Limited (12 months
to 31/12/20) audited 50% 3,713 4,857 - (326}

for

Kentification
Purposs

*
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 20

{a} Investment in Associates {continued)

Investment in associates - Group

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022 2021
Tetecom Cogk | CNC Seabed Total  Telecom Caok GG Seabed  Total
3 fe:m:. '.’: d Resources islands Resaurces
sands Limite Limited Limited Limited
Equity accounted investee
Opening balance at 1 July 12,332 - 12,332 11,808 - 11,808
Investment at cost - _ N - - .
Share of profit/llcss) (365) - {385) 594 - 524
Dividend received - - - -
Balance at 30 June 11,967 - 11,967 12,332 - 12,332

Mote 20

{b) Investment in Subsidiaries

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited (TMU} ifermerly Aitutaki Power Supply Limited } is & company registered in the Cook Islands.
TMU was incorporated on 30 Juns 2017.

The share capital of the Company is $1,000 divided into 1,000 ordinary shares of $1 each.

Tha Company's sharcholders are:

- Cock Islands Government Property Comoration — 999 shares

- Cook Islands Investment Corporation — 1 share

Curing the 30 June 2021 financial year, TMU received an equity injection from Cook |slands Investrnent Carporation of $425,000
¢ash so that TMU could continue to provide discounts to support consumers amidst COVID-19 conditions.

To Tatou Vai Authority (TTV) Is an Authority under the To Tatou Vai Act 2021. Prior to this, TTV was a company registered in the
Cook Islands and was incorporated on the 25th of August 2017,

The share capital of the Authority is $100,000 divided into 100,000 ordinary shares of $1 each.

The Authority's shareholders are:

- Cook Islands Government Proparty Corporation — 50,000 shares

- Cook Islands Investment Corporation — 50,000 shares

Avaroa Cables Limited (ACL) is a company registered in the Cook islands. ACL was incorporated on the 24th of March 2017,

The share capital of the Comnpeny is $1,000 divided into 1,000 ordinary sherss of $1 sach.
The Company’s sharehclders are:

- Cook Islands Government Property Corporation — 500 sharas

- Ceok Islands Investment Corporation — 500 share

It hes besn determined that Cook Islznds Investment Corporation, the Parent, has control over these sntitiss — TMU, TTV, and
ACL and as such have been consolidated directly inta these Group financial statements.

Investment in Subsidiaries Group o Parent
30 June®: 3G dune 30 June
202 2021
Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited - 428
To Tatou Vai Limited - 1
Avaroa Cables Umitad - 100
Total Investment in Subsidiaries - 527
Note 21 Banking customer deposits - Group
2022 2021
s Due
D
Total ue within Ovsr one year Total within one Over one
one year year year
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Call deposits 71,844 71,844 - 56,582 66,582 -
Client term depaosits A0,701 35,844 857 40,133 36,233 3,900
TOTAL 112,545 111,688 857 106,715 102,815 3,900

The Parent does not have banking customer deposits.

58




Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual repart for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

MNote 22 Borrowings

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Group
ne 30 June!
: 2021

Curreitt portion 18,063
Non current portion 38,903 18,8591
Total horrowings 39,403 36,722

Ports Authority Borrowings

The Asian Devefopment Bank [ADB) approved two loans (L2472-C0O0 and L2473-COC) on 20 November 2008 for the funding of the
Avatiu Port Development Projact. The ADB signed the loan agreements for these two loans with the Governmeant of the Cook Islands
on 5 May 2009 and the Government on-lent to the Poris Authority by way of a subsidiary loan agreement signed on 21 July 2009. ADB
further approved and signed a supplementary loan (L2739-CO0) to loans L2472-CO0 and L2473-COC on 24 March 2011 and 30
December 2011 respectively with the Government of the Cock Islands as part of the funding of the Avatiu Port Development Project.
Tha Government on provides the funds to Ports Authority by effsct of the subsidiary loan agreement signed on 31 July 2009,

The borrowings were drawn down through the Cook Islands Government. The Authority received concessionary interest rates for the
thres loans by ADB and these rates are the same as in the subsidiary loan agreemeants between Government and the Autharity.

ADB L2472

This loan is for a period of 20 vears plus a & year grace peried with rapayments commencing on 15 May 2014, This concessionary loan
was fully drawn by May 20713, The full draw down was USD$8,418,752, From May 2013, this loan was transferred to NZD with a fixed
interest rate of 5.77%.

ADBL2473

The loan is fixed for a period of 24 vears plus an 8 vear grace peried with aqual repaymants commencing on 15 May 2017. This
concessionary loan was fully drawn by February 2014, The full draw down was SDR 4,518,038. The nominal interest rate for Loan
2473 is 1% per annum for the & year grace period and 1.5% thereafter,

The Authority is responsible for any changes in the amounts payable arising due to exchange rate fluctuations. Accordingly, all
exchange rate risks are cartied by the Authority. The borrowings are recorded in NZD at the exchange rate at the date of the
drawdown and are restated using the closing rate at balance date. Any changes in exchange rate fluctuations are recorded in the
Statemant of Comprehensiva Revenue and Fxpenses.

ADB L2739

Loan 2739 is supplementary to L2473 and L2472 for USD $4.7 millicn and is fixed for a period of 20 years plus a & year interest grace
period with repayments comrmencing on 15 May 2018. The full draw down was US$4,428,273 by May 2013 and & further NZ$32,425
was drawn on January 2014 after the loan was convertad to NZD currency.

Loan 2472 and Loan 2739 were converted to NZD on 15 May 2013 with a fixed interest rate of 5.77% and an average floating interest
rate of 2.00% (2021: 2.64%) for the respective loans.

During the year, the Authority received concessionary deferred loan repayments with principal and interest payments deferrad since
May 2020. Government's concassionary repayment terms ends in June 2023, From this point, principal and interest rapayments are
expected te resume in accordance with the amended subsidiary lcan agreement signed 8 September 2022, Recommencement of
toan repayments will begin in November 2023.

Ports Authority Borrowings
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

L2472 L2473 L2739 Total
As at 30 June 2021 8,733 5,600 4,902 19,235
Movement in foreign exchange 279 279
As at 30 June 2022 8,733 5,879 4,902 19,514
Current Liability - - - -
Mon-current Liability 8,733 5,879 4,902 19,514
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 22 Borrowings {¢continued)

Avaroa Cable Limited Borrowings
The Government of the Cock Islands has entered into & loan agreement with the Asian Development Bank for USD $15 million for the

purpose of Cook Istand’s share of the Manatua Cable System including construction of the cable and additional spurs to Rarotonga and
Aitutaki, canstruction of landing stations and project managemant suppoit. In line with the ADB loan agreement, the Cook Islends
Government has entered into & subsidiary loan agraement with Avarca Cable Limited (ACL) to refend these funds to complete the
project. The total loan amount drawn down at balance date is USD $12,356,000 {2021: USD$12,356,000)

Interest and commitment charges accrued as at balance date is USD $46,000 (2021: USD$28,000}

The terms of this loan agreement include interest and othar charges payable semi-annually on 1 April and 1 October each year. The
rates from 1 October 2021 are interest 0.657% plus a PRM of 0.10% and a SFL rate of 0.02%. A commitment charge on the full
amount of the loan less amounts withdrawn frem time is charged at 0.15% per annum., Principle repayments commanced from 1
April 2023 with biannua! payments of 2.5% of the loan balance for a period of 10 years until 1 October 2042,

Avarga Cable Limited Borrowings
In thousands of New Zealand Dol

30 Juns

2021

Current portion 17,656
Non current portion -
Total borrowings 17,656
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management
Exposure to currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risk arises in the normal course of the Group's operations. This
note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
these financial statements.
Fair values

Set out below are the carrying amounts by ciass of the Group's financial instruments

Financial assets Parent

30 June
2021
In thousands of Naw Zealand Dollars

Cash and cash equivalents 1,234
Term deposits 768
Trade and other receivables 742
Banking portfolio investments -
Taxation receivable 672
Related party receivables 506

3,022

All financial assets held by the group are classified and measure at amortised cost. Due to the nature and term of the
financial assets that the Group holds, the fair value and carrying value of financial assets is not materially different.

Financial liabilities Parent

30 June
2021

n thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Trade and other payables 7,729
Employee entitlernents 864
Banking custorner deposits 106,715

Incorme tax payable 517
Related party payables 752
Bank loan 36,722

153,209°:

Dus to the nature and term of the financial liabilities that the Group holds, the fair value and camying value of financial
liabilities is not materially different.
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Coak Islands Invesiment Corporaticn
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23 Ffinancial Instruments - financial risk management {continued)

The fair valus of the financial assets and lighifities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. The faliowing
methods and assumptions were Used to estimate the fair values:

Cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their carrying

arnounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

* Long-term fixed rete and variable rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as
interest rates, specific country risk factors and individual creditworthiness of the sustomer and the risk characteristics of
the financed project. Based on this evaiuation, allowances are taken to acaount for the incurred losses of these
receivables and market related interest rates. As at 30 June 2022 and 2021 respectively, the camying amounis of such
receivables, net of allowances are not materially different from their calculated fair values.

The fair value of other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cashflows using rates currently available for
debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Credit risk
Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss to the Group if customers or counterparties to finencial instruments fail to meet
their contractual obligetions. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June was:

Group _ Parent
30 June 0. 30 June

2021 2021
In thousands of New Zealand Dolfars
Cash and cash equivalents 26,517 1,234
Term deposits 45,668 768
Trade and other receivables 4,614 742
Banking portfolio investrments 85,434 -
Taxation recsivable 1,092 672
Related party receivables 3,135 506
Maximum exposure to credit risk 166,481 3,922

In the normal course of business, the Group incurs credit risk from frade debtors, cash and cash aquivalents and term
deposits held with other financial institutions and loans receivable from customers.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents fts estimate of anticipated losses in respect of
recsivables.

Credit risk for the Group arises principally from the Bank of the Cook Islands Limited's loans to customers.
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Cook Islands Investrent Corporation
Annual repcrt for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23

(i)

Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Bank management menitor credit risk through credit policies and security ratio limits. All loans are reviewed annually to
ensure that loans are still operating under loan contracted conditions. Howaver, problem loans are reviewed on a
shorter timeframe, sither 3 months or & months, in addition to annual reviews. Anomalies are reported to the Manager
Credit who will assign follow up tasks for the credit officers. Lean payment arrears are reviewed monthly to ensure
client arrears are addressed. The Bank helds monthly Credit Management Committee meetings to montior accounts,
arrears and follow ups. Lcans that become a concern are followed up by the Asset Management Unit and reported
monthly to the board of Directors. The exposure is monitored on an on-going basis and in monthy reporis to

Management and the Board of Directors.
|

Analysis of Credit Quality
Maximum exposure to credit risk frorn bank lending activities within the Group is set out below:

Business Mortgage Personal Total Total

fn thousands of New Zealand Dollars : 2021
Maximum exposure to credit risk
Gross carrying amount 92,927
Loans with renegotiated terms
Gross carrying amount 52,642

52,642
Neither past due nor impaired
Gross carrying arnount 79,709
Less restaged loans not in arrears®* (37,089)

42 709
Past due but not impaired {days in arrears)
0-30 40,655
31-860 -
51-90 -
90+ days

40,855
Individually impaired
Balance as at 1 .July 5,902
Additions 3,976
Loan repayments
Amounts written off (1,248)
Transferred out } 931
Balance as at 30 June 19,3871 8,561

* Restaged loans not in arrears represents loans that are currently not in arrears but have been restaged from “Pass® to
“Special Mention" for the purpose of calculating the collective provisicn, These icans, aithough performing, took up 1 of
more COVID-18 Relief packages provided by the Bank during the period 1 October 2020 and 31 Margh 2022 (Phase 3 to
7) and therefore the Bank considered thess loans to carry a higher level of inherent credit risk (Refer accounting policy 3
Critical estimates and judgements} for additional information). The collective provision associated with the restaged
loans is $648k (2021 $894Kk).
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Cook Islands Invastment Corporation
Annual repert for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23

(i)

Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued}
Credit risk {continued)
Analysis of Credit Quality (continued}

Impaired loans

The Group regards & loan as impaired in the following circumstancss.

There is objective evidencs that the credit risk has increased significantly impacting the future estimated cash flows
from the asset.

A retail loan is overdue for 80 days or more,

A loan that has been renegotiated due o a deterioration in the borrower’'s condition is usually considered to be impaired
unless there is evidence that the risk of not recelving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no
other indicators of impairment.

Provision is mads for specific loans whers recovery is considersd doubtful or they have become non-performing.
Provision s made in accordance with IPSAS 41 as described in Note 3.

A managemsnt overlay at year end 30 June 2022 was made to reflect the economic uncertainty that management
considered was not reflected in the forecast macro data. The overlay increased the collective provision by $150,000
{2021 nil.}.

Loans and advances that are past due but not impaired are thosa for which contractual interest or principal payments
are past due but the bank belisves that imgairment is not appropriate on the basis of the lavel of security or collateral
available and / or the stage of collgtion of amounts owed to the bank.

Loans with restructured terms and the Group's forbearance policy

Restructured loans are impaired assets for which the terms hava been changed to grant the counterparty a concession
that would not otherwise have been available, due to the counterparty’s difficulty in complying with the original terms,
and where the vield on the asset following restruciuring is still above the Bank's cost of funds.

The bank restructures loans to customars in financial difficulties (referred to as ‘forbearance activities) to maximise
¢ollection opportunitiss and minimise the risk of default. Under the Group's forbearance policy, loan forhearance is
granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, thers is
evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debior is
expected to be able tc meest the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and amending the
terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate leans are subject to the forbearance policy. The bank’s Compliance
Cormmittee regularly reviews reports of forbearance activities.

For the purposes of disclosurss in these financlal statements, ‘loans with resiructured terms” are defined as loans that
have been restructured due to a deterioration in the borrower’s financial position, for which the Bank has made
concassions by agrasing to terms and conditions that are more favourable for the borrower than the Group had provided
initially and that it would not otherwise consider. A loan continues to be presented as part of loans with restructured

terms until maturitv. earlier repavrent or until it is written off.
Irrespective of whether loans with restructured terms have been derecognised or not, they remain disclosed as

impairad until there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate a significant reduction in the risk of non-payment of future
cash flows and there are not other indicators of impairment.
Security

Security is required in respesct of most lending. There are various securities which the bank holds. These include but are
not limited fo mortgages over leases, perscnal and company guarantees and Instruments by way of Sscurity.




Cock Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the yaar ended 30 Juna 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

MNote 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued}
Cradit risk {continued)
Impairment Allowance

(i)

30June 2021
Epecific
Coll Coll. c Individual
Provision  Provision  Provision  Provision Tatal
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 3
Business
Balance at beginning of Period - 1 July 135 742 1,206 2,508 4589
Changes to cpening balance due to transfer between stages: - - - - -
Collective Provision - New 39 B 1 1,548 1,598
Collactive Provision - Stage 1 185 - - - {95}
Collactive Provision - Stega 2 - 1243} - - 1243)
Collective Provision - Stage3 - - 11,083} - (1,083}
Specific Individual Provision - Staged - - - 1,072 1,072
Charge to stetement of comprehensive income in current yoar - - - . -
Beod Debts wiiten-off - - - 11,219} 1,219
Balange a8 at 3 Jung 79 508 14 3,909 4,839
Specific
G Collecti Calt Individusl
Provision  Provision Provision  Provision Total
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 3
Mortgage
Balance at beginning of Peviad - 1 July 183 340 283 E55 1381
Chainges 1o opening balance due to transfer between stages:
Cellective Provision - New 17 30 12 886 B48
Collective Provision - Stage 1 88} - - - (86}
Collective Provision - Stege 2 - 32 - - 132
Cellective Provision - Staged - - 289 - 289
Specific Individual Provision - Stags3 - - - (463} [283)
Charge to stetement of comprehansive income in current year - - - - -
Bad Debts writen-uoff - - - - .
Balance as at 20 Jung 114 338 584 678 1715
Specifie
Gollecti Call Indivi
rouision  Provision  Provision  Provision  Total
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 3
Parsonal
Ezlancs at beginning of Period - 1 July 70 40 93 396 509
Changes to opening balance dus to trensfer between stages:
Collective Provisian - New 58 2 2 20 82
Collective Provision - Stage 1 69 - - - 89
Cellective Provision - Stage 2 - 10 - - 10
Collective Provision - Stage2 - - 122y - (22}
Specific Individual Provision - Stage3 - - - (363} {353)
Cherge 1o statement of comprehensive inceme in carrant year - - - - -
Bad Debts writen-off - - - 128} {28)
Balance as at 30 June 196 52 3 35 357
Specific
1. o cal Indivi
vovision  Provision  Provision  Provision  Total
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 3
Total
Balance at beginning of Period - 1 July 388 1,123 1582 3457 6,549
Changes to opening balance due to transfer between steges:
Collective Provisien - New 114 40 16 2,155 2325
Cellzciive Provlsion - Stage 1 1131 - - - (113}
Collective Pravision - Stage 2 - (284) - - {264)
Collective Provisien - StageS - - (728) - (798}
Specific Individuel Provision - Stage3 - - - 257 257
Charge to statement of comprehensive incoms in current year - - - - -
Bad Debts writen-off - - - {1,248 {t,248)
Balance as at 30 June 389 858 01 4821 8710
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23
Credit risk (continued)

Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

{iii) Significant concentrations of credit risk
Concentrations of credit risk exist if a number of counterparties are engaged in similar activitias and have similar economic
characteristics that would cause their ability to mest contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic

or ather conditions,

Coaok Islands tnvestment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by location, institution and sector.

Group Parent
30June 30 June
202 2021

in thousands of New Zealand Dolfars
Concentration by Location
New Zealand financial institutions 26,937 : -
New Zealand other institutions 1,680 -
Australia financial institutions 66 -
Rarotongs financial institutions 44,105 2,019
Rarotonga - lending 72,599 -
Outer islands - lending 12,836 -
Rarctonga - Related parties 3,136 506
Other 5,105 1,397

166,461 3,822
Concentration by Counterparty

Credit rating

Australia New Zealand Bank Al ; 16,26 25
Bank of South Pacific B+ 1,161
Kiwi Bank A 13,814 -
Bank of New Zealand ‘ Ab -
Westpac Banking Corporation Ab- -
Banzpay BB- -
Naticnal Australia Bank Group AA- -
Bank of the Cook Islends N/A 833
Loans to custorners N/A -
Related parties MNAA 506
Cther /A 1,397
Total 3,922
Concentration by Sector
Banks 2,019
Orther institutions 1,680 -
Heusing 44,520 -
Personal 7,490 -
Business 33,424 -
Related parties 3,136 506
Other 34 5,105 1,397
Total 174,055 166,467 3,922

66




Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in mesting financial obligations as and when they fall
due. The Group evaluates its liquidity requirements on an on-going basis. In general, the Group generates sufficient
cash flows from operating activities to meaet its abligations arising from its financial liabilities.

Within the Group, liquidity risk is most prevalent in the banking cperations.

The Bank of the Cook Islands Board sets the Bank’s strategy for managing liguidity risk and has delegated
responsibility for oversight of the liquidity policy to the Assets and Liabilities Committse.

The Finance and Customer Service & Marketing departments review the liquidity position on a daily basis and report
any exceptions and liquidity issues to the Managing Director.

The Bank’s approach tc managing liguidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities as
they fall due under both nermal and stressed sonditions without unacceptable losses or damage to the Bank's
reputation. The key elements of the Bank’s strategy are as follows:

daily monitoring of cash levels held for client withdrawals,

daily monitering of cash held in other financial institutions on call and on term deposit,

weekly liquidity reporting to managemaent taking into consideration incoming and outgeing cash flows and estimates
commitments for the week,

= monthly discussions in the Asssts and Liabilities Committee meeting and at Board [avel.

The maturity of individual financial asssts and liabilities are detailed in the notas throughout these financial
statements.

In addtion, the Government of the Cook Island has provided a letter of support to both the Bank and the Group
confirming it will provide financial assistance to the Bank and Group where necessary to continue its operations as a
going concern and will continue to do so for at least 12 months from the date audit clearance is provided for the 30
June 2022 financiail statements.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) the profit or
loss by amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables rernain constant. The analysis is
perfermed on the same basis for 2021.

Group PARENT

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 30 June
2021
Interast bearing Financial assets 2,002
Interest bearing Financial liabilities -
Net exposure 2,002
100bp increase sffect on profit {20}
100bp decrease affect on profit 20

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate dus to movements in exchange
rates. The Group does not hold any material forgign currency assets or liabilities and therefore there is minimal
currency risk.
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Cook Islands [nvestment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The following financial instruments ars sensitive to changes in interest rates: loans, term deposits, cash and cash
squivalents, and customer deposits. Leans to customers and Customer deposits are at fleating interest rates which are
reviewwed on a quarterly basis to ensure they are kept In fine with market interest rate movements, An immaterial portion of
loans have a fixed Interast rate for the term of the loan. The cash on hand and shori term cash deposits earn interest at
nermal floating commercial rates.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management {continued)

Interest Rate Repricing Schedule (continued)

Group
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Weighted average Carrying 0to 12 1-5 =5 Non
interest rate Amount months years years sensitive
Balance as at 30 June 2021
Financial Assets
Cash c¢n hand N/A 1,487 - - - 1,487
Cash at bank 0.95% 26,517 26,517 - - -
Term Deposits 1.65% 45,668 37,185 © 8,483 - -
Trade and othar sundry recaivab N/A 4,614 - B - 1.614
Related party receivables - N/A 3,136 - - - 3,136
Taxation receivable N/A 1,092 - - - 1,092
Banking portfolio investments 8.40% 85,434 85,434 - - -
Total Financial Assets 167,248 149,136 8,483 - 10,329
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables N/A 7,729 - - - 7.729
Empioyee entitlements N/A 864 - - - 864
Banking customer deposits 3.43% 108,715 102,815 3,900 - -
Income tax payable N/A 517 - - - 517
Related party payables N/A 752 - - - 752
Bank loan 3.58% 36,722 18,063 - 18,659 -
Dividends payable N/A - - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 163,289 120,878 3,900 18,659 9,862
Interest Rate Gap 14,649 28,258 4,583 (18,659} 487
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Note 23

Interest Rate Repricing Schedule (continued)

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annugl report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Parent
in thousands of New Zgaland Doliars
Weighted average  Carrying 0to 12 1-5 =5 Non
interest rate Amount months years years sensitive
Balance as at 30 June 2021
Financial Assets
Cash and cash esquivalents 1.25% 1,234 1,234 - -
Term Deposiis 3.24% 768 768 - - -
Trade and cther sundry receivab N/A 742 - - - 742
Taxation receivable N/A 672 - - 672
Dividends recsivable N/A - - - -
Related party receivables N/A 506 - - 508
Total Financial Assets 3,922 2,002 - - 1,920
Financial Liabilities
Trads and other payahles N/A 663 - - 663
Emplcyee entitiements N/A 137 - - 137
Related party payablas N/A 1,515 - - 1,815
Dividends payable N/A - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 2,315 - - 2,315
Interest Rate Gap 1,607 2,002 - (395}

Capital management
The primary objective of managing the Group’s capital is 1o ensure that there is sufficient cash available to support the
Groug's funding requirements, including capital expenditure, to ensure that the Group remains financialiy sound. The

Group’s capitzl includes Cepital Contributions and Raserves. Within the Group, Bank of the Cock Islands Limited must meet

capital adeguacy requirements required by Cook Islands Banking regulations.

Bank of the Cook Islands Limited's policy is to maintain investor, creditor and market confidsncs and to sustain the futurs
development of the banking business.

The Bank's regulatery capital comprises two tiers:

At balance date the bank had the following:

* Tier One Capital which includes issued and fully paid shares and retained eamings less intangible assets. This must be

at least 5% of Risk Weighted Assets.
® Totai Capital which in¢ludes all other capital must be at least 10% of Risk weightad assets.

) 30 June
2021

% of Risk Weighted Assets
Tier Gne Capital 18.99%
Total Capital 18.89%

The Bank complied with all externally imposed capftal requirements.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annusal report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

MNote

24

Commitments and contingencies

Capital Commitments
The Group has the following material capital commitrnents:

Avaros Cabls Limitad
Avaroa Cable Lirnited has the following capital commitments at balance date:

Subcom, per the Supply Contract for the the design, manufacture, installation, integration, testing and cornmissioning of the
Manutua Cable Systern. At 30 June 2022, Avaroa Cable Limited’s remaining share of the commitrent to Subgom under this
contract is USD $270,730 (20271 USD $270,730) :

Avaroa Cable Limited entered into a contract with: Land Holdings Limited for the construction of cable landings stations in Rarotongg and
Altutaki. At 30 June 2022, Avaroa Cable Limited’s remaining share of the commitrent to Land Holdings underthis contract is NZD 522,435
{2021: Nil)

Operating lease rentals
The Group as lessee
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellabla operating |eases:

Parent

30 June
2021

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Land and Bulidings

Due within one year

Due within two to five years
Later than five years

Total operating lease expense
commitments

Bank of the Cogk |slands Limited

The Bank leases land on which BCI House stands under an operating lease. The original daed of lease runs for 60 years from 1
April 1967,

The Bank also leases the Aitutaki branch premises, the lease runs for 15 vears from 1 January 2019.

Alrport Authori
The Authority leases land that is utilised for Airport operations, accommodating office premises and othsr tenanted buldings.

Te Aponga Uira

The Authority leases lend that is utilisad for electricty services, eccommeodsting office premises, solar farms and various sites for
transfarmer shelters.

Coock Islands Government Property Corporation

The Corporation holds long term lend lsases, Most of these leases ara for 20 - 60 year terms and are perpetually renewable,

To Tatou Vai
The Authority holds Isases its office premises including Airport House 3 and 4 for two years from 1 July 2021,
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
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Notes to the financial statements {continued}

Note 24 Commitments and contingencies (continued)
Operating lease rentals {continued)

The Group as lessor
Futura minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases:

Parent

30 June
2021

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Buildings

Dug within one year

Dus within ons to two years
Due within two to five years
Total

The Group lets properties under operating leases. Property rental income earned on operating leases during the year was
$612,000 (2021 $575,000).

Cther Commitments
The Group through Bank of the Cock Islands has committed to lending a number of loans in the future that have not yet been drawn
down. As at 30 June 2022 these undrawn loans total $7,187,000 (2021: $2,026,000).

Contingencies
The Group is currently aware of the contingent liabilities listed balow. Varicus other contingent liabilities may exist having arisen over the
earlier period of the Corporation’s existence of which the Mambers of the Corporation are not aware.

Uncalled Capital
Asian Development Bank — the Corporation has a further 88 uncalled shares. The shares have a par value of USD13,500 cach.

Grant Funding
The New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade (NZ MFAT) has provided funding to the Government of the Cock Islands (CIG)

under the Grant Funding Agreernent {GFA) dated 6 April 2018 to implement the Pacific Connectivity Project — the construction of the
Meanatua Submarine Cable. Grant funding of $10.1 million was provided for under the GFA dated 6 April 2018, The funding activity is in
relation to the Cook Islands partficipation in the Manatus Cable consortivm, and the Ceok Islands contribution o the consortium for Cook
Islands contribution towards the Manatua Cable as a conspriium member. A variation to the GFA was entered into between both parties
on 23 Nevernber 2078, increasing the grant funding from $10.1 million to $15.0 millicn. The grant funding is disbursed frem NZ MFAT to
the Ministry of Finance and Economic Management (MFEM) Devalopment Coordination Division (DCD) and this is then either disbursed
to the respactive agency incurring the requisite costs or directly to suppliers.

At balance date, the funds received from NZ MFAT and its disbursements is disclosed in the following table.

. 30/06/2018 30/06/2019 30/06/2020 30/06/2021 Total
Opening balance - 2,710 8,907 4,054 -
Funds reczived by DCD from NZ MFAT under the GFA 2,800 10,200 2,000 - 15,000
Eﬁgizs;fﬁif:t: frorn DCD to ACL for Manatua project operating . 13.928) (6,830) (2.021) {13,5085)
::]t‘x:r;c:feglsbursed from DCD to other CIG agencies for costs {90) (75} 23) 13 271
Fareign exchange gainflloss) in USD held by DCD 33
Balance of funds received by DCD from NZ MEAT
under the GEA 2,710 8,907 4,054 2,046 1,267

There wera no further contingant assets or liabilities as at balanca date.
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Note

25 Segmental Reporting
The Group operates primarily in the property investment and ranagernent sectors, It also operates in the utilities secter, consisting of
ports and airport services, power supply and banking.

Industry Segments
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Trading Revenue 11,015 - 3,387 18,522 979 2411 T 36,314
Crown Appropriation - 150 11,431 £00 3,048 127 15,255
Other Revenue 383 1,687 2,01 699 177 57 4,914
Expenses (3.118) {(14,131) {24,238) (8,954) {2,832 (85,781)
Other Gains / (Losses) - 2,011 - 57 - 194 2,263
Surplus / (Deficit) before tax {1,112) 633 2,697 (4,460) {4,750) (43) (7,035)
Total Assets 136,040 32,914 85,788 652,941 70,230 31,745 419,657
Total Liabilities 109,273 20,088 6,750 3,270 1,041 18,103 158,505
Capital Expenditure 1,308 15,140 871 310 2,773 1,061 21,253

26 Going Concern

Thess financial statements have been prepared on the geing congern basis. The Corporation is ultimately dependent an the support of the
Government by Crown Appropriation. In additicn, the liquidity of the Corporation is inherently dependent an the proceeds from the
managernant and disposal of its assets, the value and potential returns of which are uncertain. Daspits this, there are no known matters
that suggest the support of the Govermnment will be withdrawn or that the proceeds from the asset management and disposal will be
insufficient to meet the requirements of the Cerporation for the foresesable future. The Cook Islands Government has provided a letter of
support stating that it will maintain ownership and contrel of the group for the foreseeable future and will provide financlal assisstance

whare necessary for the group to continue its operations.
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Note

27

Subsequent Events

The Group continuss to take various measures to mitigate the impact of Coronavirus/Covid-19 on its operations including
employees and custorners. The key impacts an Group entities are described in Note 3 and throughout the notes 1o the financial
staterments where applicable.

Subsaguent to year end:

Te Aponga Uira:

Te Apanga Uira announced in September 2022, a temporary fuel surcharge to be included in the tariffs from Octobar 2622 o Juns
2023 { with regular internal reviews). The amount of the surcharge is $0.15 per unit used as is added to all tariff types. Feas and
other charges remain unchanged.

Airport Authority :

Subsequent to year end, thers is an ongoing review with exparts and lega! representatives for the defects identified within phase-
1 of the Runway Slab project,

Three defective slabs have been Identified as requiring replacerment. These slabs continue to be used to-date as part of the
Authority's normal opersticns. Estimated costs to replace impaired runway slabs is $180,000. These are expacted 1o be replaced
in the coming year and tha cost of replacement will be recognised when works are completed. The impairment at vear end is
considered immaterial to these financial staternents

Cock Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited {CITH)

Subsequent to year end, the board of directors for Telecorn Cook Islands Ltd declared a $71.5 million interim dividend for the first
quarter of the 2023 financial year. This was paid on the 29th July 2022,

Bank of Cock Islands

In addition, negotiations continue with landowners for the extenston of the BCl premises lease that expires in 2027, The formal
terms and conditions including consideration are yet to be agreed.

Thera have hean no other subsaquent events.
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